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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act {(Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financlal statements and related financial
information included in this report. It'is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statements
fairly present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial racords and related data.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting
officer to mest these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of
error or deficit In a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segragation of duties to ensure an acceptable lavel of risk,
These controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest athical
standards in ensuring the municipality's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known
forms of risk across the municipality, Whils operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to minimise it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2015 and, in the light of this
review and the currant financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Although the accounting officer are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the municipality, they are supported by the
municipality's external auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for expressing an audit opinion and reporting on the municipality's annual financial
statements, The annual financial statements have bean examined by the municipality's external auditors and their report is
presented on page 4.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 4 to 92, which have been prepared on the geing concern basis, were
approved by the accounting officer on 31 August 2014 and were signed on its behalf by:

PD Naldoo
Municipal Manager




Ugu District Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2014 2013
Restated
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 2 8069416 6928 789
Operating lease recsivable 3 57 450 43 785
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 9769 194 8 557 494
VAT receivable 5 15020053 23 240 458
Receivables from exchange transactions 6 132427 928 101 536 547
Current portion of long-term receivables 7 32042 51 424
Cash and cash equivalents 8 160671 371 71752 397
326 047 454 212120 894
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 9 25000000 25000000
Property plant and equipment 10 2272633784 2021 335183
Intangible assets 11 9 599 571 10234 753
Investments 12 100 100
Long-term receivables 7 7 404 70 282
2 307 240 859 2 056 640 328
Total Assets 2633 288 313 2268 761 222
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability 3 59 402 34011
Payables 13 156379327 135553155
Consumer deposits 14 19724662 19379 146
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 15 48333086 51508416
Provisions 16 1476 376 1785 888
Current portion of long term liabilities 17 21630386 16909779
Bank overdraft 8 3343474 3195209
250946 713 228 365 604
Non-Current Liabilities
Retirement benefit liabilities 18 23599788 21375642
Non-current provisions 19 11 076 109 8 440 747
Long term liabilittes 17 165 364 250 186 446 535
200040156 216 262924
Total Liabilities 450 986 869 444 620 528
Net Assets 2182301 444 1824 132694
Accumulated surplus 20 2182301 444 1824 132 694
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2014 2013
Restated

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Service charges 21 3147083607 274 524 180

Rental of facilities and equipment 22 2183 961 1693135

Interest earned 23 32566582 20305215

Other revenus 24 6378760 11856263

Total revenue from exchange transactions

355922910 308378 793

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 25 664 584 167 590 984 388
Total revenue 53 1020 507 077 899363 181
Expenditure

Employes related costs 27 {242 287 020) (244 233 285)
Remuneration of councillors 28 (77084080) (7 848535)
Depreciation and amortisation 29 (67 428 260) (52 754 325)
Impairment loss/ Reversal of impairments 30 (4 664 957) 24 008 857
Finance costs A (15 983 120) (16 959 929)

Collection costs
Repairs and maintenance

Bulk purchases 32
Contracted services 33
Grants and subsidies paid 34
General Expenses 35

Profit on disposal of asset

- (258 323)
(16 967 534) (11 200 244)
(52126 622) (34 650 454)
(19579300) (18131 854)

(118 990 550} (200 438 598)

(116 495725) (95239 306)

(31 069) -

Total expenditure

(662 338 327) (657 705 996)

Operating surplus

358168 750 241 657 185

Surplus for the year

358 168 750 241 657 185
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand

Accumulated Total net
surplus assels

Balance at 01 July 2012
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
Correction of error

1624 431 829 1 624 431 829

241657 185 241657 185
(41 956 320) (41 956 320)

Total changes

199700865 199 700 865

Balance at 01 July 2013
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

1824132694 1824132694
358 168750 358 168 750

Total changes

358 168750 358 168 750

Balance at 30 June 2014

2182 301 444 2182 301 444

Note(s)
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Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand

Note(s) 2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
Grants 664 584 167 542 525 860
Service charges 314 783 607 241 440 229
Interest received 32 566 581 1928978
Other raceipts 57 8572720 87216077
1020507 075 873 120 144
Payments
Employee costs (242 287 020} (243 131 572)
Remuneration of councillors (7784081) (7 848 535)
Finance costs (15983 120} (16 959 930)
Suppliers paid (128 089 439) (92 998 054)
Other payments 55 (201 167 636} (287 653 540)

(595 311 296) (€48 591 631)

Net cash flows from operating activities

a8 425195779 224 528 513

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property plant and equipment
Non cashflow transfers

Purchase of other intangible assets

Decreasa / (Increase) in long-term receivables

10 (347 243 125) (201 807 817)
10 32571 951 -
11 (2 469 151) {384 130)

- (22 203)

Net cash flows from Investing actlvities

(317 140 325) (202 214 150)

Cash flows from financing actlvities

New loans raised
Loans repaid

- 7294 544
(19 284 745) (16 371 053)

Net cash flows from financing activitles

(19284 745) (9 076 509)

Net Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

88770709 13 237854
68557 188 55319334

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

8 157 327897 68 557188
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis
Approved  Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable betwaen final
basis budgst and

Figures In Rand actual
Statement of Financlal Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Service charges 340 282 55 347298 340629853 214142468 25 646 246
Rental of facilities and 2091087 - 2081067 2193961 (102 894)
equipment
Interest owned - external - 3000000 3000000 10597167 (7 597 167)
investments
Other income 3963419 593 518 4 556 937 6378760 (1277 515)
Interest earned - outstanding 2588 139 - 2588139 21969414 {19381 275)
debtors
Total revenus from exchange 348925180 39540016 352065996 356922910 (3058 T 7
transactlons
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxation revenue
Government grants & subsidies 316 272560 363 357 927 679 630487 684 584 167 15046 320
Total revenue 665197740 367 298 743 1032 496 483 1017 827 290 14 659 193
Expenditure
Employee related costs 224361175 21760684 246121 859 242 387 020 3834839
Remuneration of councillors 7 646 746 1201427 8848173 7 784 081 1064 092
Depreciation and amortisation 69 537 009 - 69537099 g7425260 2108 839
Impairment loss/ Reversal of 26 379 155 - 26379155 4664957 21714198
impairments
Finance costs 19000000  (2000000) 17000000 15933120 1247844
Repairs and maintenance 20000000 (5164977) 23835023 15957534 6 867 489
Bulk purchases 42 624 000 6009695 48633695 52128623  (3493027)
Contracted Sarvices 17 174 074 3760926 20935000 19579300 1355610
Grants and subsidies paid 66503425 67866556 134369 991 118 990 550 15379 421
Loss on disposal of assets - - - 31069 (31 069)
General Expenses 110 094 030 - 127133198 116 485 725 10 637 470
Total expenditure 812 319 704 93434211 722793080 662338327 50484753
Surplus before taxation 52 878 036 (B89 493 211) 309 703 403 358 168 749 (63 511 666)
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis
Approved  Adjusiments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable betwsen final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 9 587 200 5 9 587 200 8 069 416 1617784
Receivables from exchange 77608754 20985196 98773950 132427928 (33 653 078)
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange - - - 9769194 (9 769 194)
transactions
VAT raceivable 5 5 = 15020053 (15020 053)
Current portion of long-term 1522 486 - 1522 486 32042 1490 444
receivables
Opsrating lease receivables 5 5 - 57 450 (57 450)
Cash and cash equivalents 61446000 10705000 72151000 150871371 (88 520 371)
150 364 440 31670156 192034638 326 047 454 (144 012 818)
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2072620650 180 353350 2252983 000 2277633784 (19 650 764)
Intangible Assets 135000 10675000 10810000 g 599571 1210429
Investment Property - - 25000000 25000 000 &
Long-term receivables 10283340 10212860 20496 000 7404 20488 596
Non-currant investments 5 . - 100 {100)
2083047990 201 241 010 2 309 289 000 2 307 240 859 (2408 141)
Total Assets 2233412430 232911 206 2491 323 636 2 633 288 312 (141 964 676)
Liabilitles
Current Liabilitles
Payables 395149300 (313224300) 81925000 156 379327 (74454 a2n
Provisions 4 164 000 S 4164 000 1476 376 2 687 624
Consumer deposits 20 369 000 - 20369000 19724662 644 338
Unspent conditional grants and e s = 48333086 {40 333 085)
receipts
Current portion of long term - - = 21630386 (21630 386)
liabilities
Bank overdraft - 5 - 3343474 (3343474)
419 682 300 (313 224 300) 106458000 250946 713 (144 488 713)
Non-Current Liabllities
Non-cument provisions 26 355 170 2000030 28355200 11076106 17 279 091
Retirement Benefits Liabilities S - - 23599788 (23599 788)
Long term liabilities 223798892 (B5999892) 136799000 1g5 364 259 (28 565 259)
250154 062 (84 999 862) 165154200 200 040 156 (34 885 956)
Total Liabilities 669 836 362 (398 224 162) 271612200 450 986 869 {179 374 669)
Net Assets 1563576068 631135368 2219711436 2182301 444 37 409 992
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis
Approved  Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts  Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Reserves
Accumulated surplus 1548149878 631135368 2204285246 2182301444 37408 992
Total Net Assets 1548 149878 631135368 2204 285246 2182301444 37409 992
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Ugu District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies

1. Basls of presentation

The annual financial statements have baen prepared on the accruzl basis of accounting and are in accardance with the
historical cost convantion, except where indicatad otherwise. The annual financial statements are presented in South African
rand, rounded off to the nearest rand which is the municipality’s functional currency,

These annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Principles (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards
Board and the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 {Act No 56 of 2003).

1.1 Changes in accounting poiicy and comparabliity
Accounting policies have been consistently applied, except where otherwiss indicated below:

For the years ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014 the municipality has adopted the accounting framework as set out in
paragraph 1 above. The details of any resuiting changes in accounting policy and comparative restatements are set out in the
relevant Notes to the annual financial stataments.

The municipality changes an accounting policy only if the change:
*  Is required by a Standard of GRAP; or
*  Results in the annual financial stalements providing reliable and more relavant information about the effects of
transactions, other events or conditions, on the municipality’s financial position, financial performance or cash flow.

1.2 Critical judgements, estimations and assumptions

In the application of the municipality's accounting policies, which are described below, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management have made in the
process of applying the municipality’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in annual financial statements:

12
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Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies

1.2 Critical judgements, estimations and assumptlons (continued)
Revenue racognition

Accounting policy 9.2 on revenue from exchange transactions and accounting policy 9.3 on revenue from non-exchange
transactions describes the conditions under which revenus will be recorded by the management of the municipality.

In making their judgement, the management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP
9 (Revenue from exchange transactions) and GAMAP @ {Revenus) as far as revenue from non-exchange transactions is
concerned (ses basis of praparation above), and, in particular, whether the municipality, when goods are sold, had transferrad
to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and when services is rendered, whether the service
has been rendered, Also of importance s the estimation process invelved in initially measuring revenue at the falr value
thereof. The management of the municipality is satisfied that racognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate,

Financlal assets and liablilities

The classification of financial assets and liabilities, into categories, is based an judgement. Accounting pollcy 6.1 on financial
agsets classification and accounting policy €.2 on financial liabilities classification describe the factors and criteria considered
by the management of the municipality in the classification of financial assetls and liabilities.

In making the above-mentioned judgement, management considered the definition and recognition criteria for the classification
of financial instruments as set out in GRAP 104 {Financial instruments — Presentation) and GRAP 104 (Financial instruments —
Recognition and Measurement).

Impairment of financlal assets

Accounting policy 6.4 on impairment of financial assets describes the process followed to determine the value with which
financial assets should be impaired. In making the estimation of the impairment, the management of the municipality
considered the detailed criteria of impairment of financial assets as sat out In GRAP 104 (Financial Instruments — Recognition
and Measuremant) and used its judgement to selecta variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

The management of the municipality is satisfied that impairment of financial assets recorded during the year is appropriate.

*  Impairment of trade receivables:
The calcutation in respect of the impairment of debtors is based on an assessment of the extent to which debtors
have defaulted on payments already due, and an assessment of their abillty to make payments based on their
creditworthiness. This is performed per service-identifiable categories across all classes of debtors,

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As described in accounting policies 3.3 and 4.2, the municipality depreciates/amortises its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets over the estimated useful lives of the assets, taking into account the residual values of the assets at the end
of their useful lives, which is determined when the assets are available for use,

The useful lives of assels are based on management's estimation, Management considered the impact of technology,
availability of capital funding, service requirements and required return on assets in order to determine the optimum useful life
expectation, whera appropriate.

The estimation of residual values of assets is based on management's judgement as to whether the assets will be sold or used
to the end of their useful lives, and in what condition they will be at that time.

Water inventory

The estimation of the water inventory in reservoirs is based on the measurement of water via electronic level sensors, which
determines the depth of water in the reservoirs, which is then converted into volumes based on the total capacity of the
reservoir. Refer to accounting policy, paragraph 7.2.2.

Defined benefit plan llabilities

13
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Accounting Policies

1.2 Critical judgements, estimations and assumptions (continued)

As described In accounting policy 11.2, employee benefits —post-employment benefits, the municipality obtains actuarial
valuations of its defined benefit plan liabilities. The defined benefit obligations of the municipality that were identified are post-
retirement health benefit obligations and long-service awards. Details of the liabilities and the key assumptions made by the
actuaries in estimating the liabilities are provided in notes to the annual financial statements.

Provisions and contingent llabllitles

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and when measuring contingent liabilities.
provisions are discounted where the effect of discounting is materia! using actuarial valuations,

1.3 Controlled entities

Controlled entities ars entities, including special purpose entities, over which the municipality has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting righte, The
existance and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the municipality controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date an which control is
transferred to the municipality. They are de-consolidated from the date on which control ceases. Controlled entities are
identified after evaluation of power and benefit indicators as described in GRAP 6.

Inter-entity transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the municipality and the subsidiaries are
eliminated.

Unrealised lossas are also eliminated unlese the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Subsidlaries’ accounting policies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
municipality.

1.4 Property plant and equipment
Initial recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one year,

The cost of an item of property plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
* itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
municipality; and
*  the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initialiy recognised at cost on its acquisition date or in the case of assets acquired by grants or
donations, deemed cost, being the fair value of the asset on initial recognition, The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable o bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by the municipality. The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling
and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located,

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items of property, plant and equipment,

Where an asset is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is
deemed 1o be equal to the fair value of that asset on the date acquired.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired in exchange for non-monetary assets or monetary assets, ora

combination of monetary and non-monetary assets is measured at the fair value of the asset given up, unless the fair value of
the asset received is more clearly evident. If the acquired item could not be measured at its fair value, its cost is measured at

the carrying amount of the asset given up.

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the municipality expects to use them
during more than one period. Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connaction with an
item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment,

14
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Property plant and equipment {continued)
Subsequent measurement

Subsequent expenditure relating to properly, plant and equipment is capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits or
potential service delivery associated with the subsequent expenditure will flow to the municipality and the cost or fair value of
the subsequent expenditure can be reliably measured. Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is only capitalised when it
increases the capacity or future economic benefits associated with the assat. Where the municipality replaces parts of an
asset, it derecognises the part of the assat being replaced and capitalises the new component,

Subsequently all property plant and equipment is measured at cost {or deemed cost), less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Compensation from third parties for itams of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up is included in
surplus or deficit when the compensation bacomes receivable.

Depreciation

Depreciation on assets other than land is calculated on cost, using the straight-line method, to allocate the cost over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The depreciation method used refiects the pattern in which the assst's future economic
benefits or service potential are expected to be consumed by the municipality. Each part of an item of property, plant and
equipmeant with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depraciated separately.

Depraciation enly commences when the asset is available for use, unlass stated otherwise, The depreciation rates are based
on the following estimated useful lives:

Item Average useful life
Buildings

¢  Improvemsnts 5to 30 years
Infrastructure

*  Security measures 7 to 25 Years
*  Sewerage 7 to 60 Years
*  Water Sto 100 Years
Community

¢ Sports facilities 5to 30 years

¢ Other facilities 5 to 30 years
Other

*  Computer equipment 3to 10 years

*  Furniture and Fittings 3 to 15 years

*  Motor vehicles 4 to 15 years

*  Office equipment 3to 15 years
*  Plant and equipment 210 15 years
*  Specialist vehicles 10 to 15 years
*  Other assels 510 30 years

The assets’ residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed annually, and adjusted prospectively
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

L.and

Land is stated at historical cost and is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Infrastructure assets.

Infrastructure assets are any assets that are part of a network of similar assets. Infrastructure assets are shown at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, Infrastructure assets ars treated similarly to all other assets of the
municipality in terms of the asset management policy.

Finance leases

Assets capitalised under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as property, plant

and equipment controlled by the municipality or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease if there is no reasonable certainty
that the municipality will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

15



Ugu District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies

1.4 Property plant and equipment ({continued)
Derecognition of property, plant and equipment.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or when no futurs economic
benefits or service potential are expectad from its use or disposal,

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised.

Gains or losses are calculated as the difference between the carrying value of assets (cost less accumulated depregiation and
accumulated impairment losses) and the proceeds from disposals and are included in the statement of financial performance
as a gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.

1.5 Intangible assets
Initial recognition

Identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance are classified and recognised as intangible assets. The
municipality recognises an intanglble asset in its statement of financial position only when it is probable that the expacted future
economic benefits or service potantial that arg attributable to the asset will flow to the municipality and the cost or fair value of
the asset can be measured reliably,

Intangible assets are initially recoghised at cost. The cost of an intangible asset is the purchase price and other costs
attributable to bring the intangible assst to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the municipality, or where an Intangible Asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair
value as at the date of acquisition. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. Intangible assets acquired
separately or internally generated are raportad at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an intangible asset acquired in exchange for non-monetary assets or monetary assets, or a combination of
monetary and non-monetary assets, is measured at the fair value of the assat given up, unless the fair value of the asset
received is more clearly avidant. If the acquired item could not be measured at its fair value, its cost is measured at the carrying
amount of the asset given up. If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the camying amount of
the asset(s) given up.

Subsequent measurement, amortisation and impairment

After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Expenditure on an intangible item that was initially recognised as an expense shall not be recognised as
part of the cost of an intangible asset at a later date.

Where intangible assets are deemed to have indefinite useful lives, such intangible assets are not amortised. However, such
intangible assets are subject to an annual impairment test,

Amortisation only cornmences when the asset is available for use, uniess stated otherwise, The amortisation rates are based
on the following estimated useful lives:

Where itams of intangible assets have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is
recognised as an expense in the period that the impairment is identified. The impairment loss is the difference between the
carrying amount and the recoverable service amount.

The estimated useful life, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually at the end of the financial year. Any
adjustments arising from the annual review are applied prospectively as a change in accounting estimate in the statement of
financial performance,

Item Useful life
Computer software 210 5 years
Rights and servitudes Infinitive
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1.5 Intangible assets {continued)
Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service
potantial expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is
determined as the difference between the proceeds of disposal and the carrying value and is recognised in the statement of
financial perfarmance.

1.6 [mpairment of assets

The municipality classifies all assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial retumn as cash generating
assets. All other assets are classified as non-cash generating assets.

Impalrment of cash-generating assets
The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverabls amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimale the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs Is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. The best evidence of fair value less cost to sell is the price in a binding sale agresment in an arm's length transaction,
adjusted for the incremental cost that would be directly attributable to the disposal of the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assst is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit.

An impairment loss is recognised for cash generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is iess than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit as follows:
*  Onapro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of @ach asset in the unit,

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there Is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for assets may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those
assels are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset atiributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carying
amount that would have bsen determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit.

Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an assst may be impaired.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable service amount is estimated for the individual asset. If
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable service amount of the individual asset, the recoverable service amount of the non-
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable service amount of a non-cash generating asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its valus in
use, The value in use for a non-cash generating asset is the present value of the asset's remaining service potential.

If the recoverable service amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying ameunt of the asset is reduced 1o its
recoverable service amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised for non-cash generating units if the recoverable service amount of the unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit as follows:
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1.6 Impalrment of assets (continued)

* Ona pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there Is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for assets may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recovarable service amounts
of those assets are estimated.

The Increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an Impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment Joss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A raversal of an impairment loss of assats carried at cost lass accumulated depreciation or amortisation is racognised
immediately in surplus or deficit.

1.7 Financlal instruments

The municipality has various types of financial instruments and these can be broadly categorised as either financial assets or
financial liabilities or residual interests in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement.

Initial racognition

Financial assets and Financial Liabilities are recognised on the municipality's statement of financial position when it bacomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

The municipality does not offset a financial asset and a financial liability unless a legally enforceabls right to set off the
recognised amounts currently exist and the municipality intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assat and settle
the liability simuitanecusly,

Fair value methods and assumptions

The fair values of Financial Instruments are datermined as follows:

*  The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.

*  Ifthe market for a Financial Asset is not active {and for unlisted securities), the municipality establishes fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent am's length transactions, reference to other
Instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The effective Interest rate method

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or recaipts through the expected Iife of the Financial Instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability,

Amortised cost

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or Financial Liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation, using the effective interest rate method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectability,
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1.7 Financial Instruments (continued)
1.12.1 Financial assets - Classification
A financial asset is any asset that is a cash or contractual right to receive cash,

The financial assets of the municipality are classified as follows:

¢ Financlal assets at amoriised aost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months,
which are clagsified as non-curren assets. Financlal assets at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value
Plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. After initia)
recognilion, financial assets are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method less a
provision for impairment.

*  Financlal assets at falr value are financial assets that meet either of the following conditions:
(i) Derivatives:;
{ii) Combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
{iii) Instruments held for trading;
{iv) Non-derivative financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair
value at initial recognition; or
(v) Financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financtal instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost.

*  Financial assets at cost are investments in residual interest that do not have a quoted market price in an
active markst and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Cash includes cash-on-hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks {including call deposits). Cash and cash equivalents
are shori-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash, which are held with registerad banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the purposes
of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash-on-hand and deposits heid on call with banks, net of
bank overdrafts. The municipality categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial assets at fair value,

1.12.2 Financlal llabilities - classification.

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets 1o another entity.
There are three main categories of financial liabilities, the classification determining how they ara measured.
Financial liabilities may be measured at:
(i) Financial liabilities measured at fair value;
(ii) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost; or
{lii) Financial liabilities measured at cost
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1.7 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financtal liabilities that are measured at fair value are financial liabilities that are essentially held for trading (i.e. purchased with
the intention to sell or repurchase in the short term; derivatives other than hedging instruments or are part of a portfolio of
financial instruments where there is recent actual evidence of short term profiteering or are derivatives).

Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised, Finance charges on bank overdrafis are expensed as incurred.
1.42.3 Initial and subsequent measurement

Financial assets:

Financlal assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are initially measured at fair vaiue plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Subsequently, these assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment, with interest recognised on an effective yield basis.

Trade and other receivables (excluding value added taxation, prepayments and operating lsase receivables), loans to
municipal entities and loans that have fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified
as financial assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets at fair value are initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised directly in equity until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss recorded in equity is recognised in the statement of financial
performance, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss recorded in equity Is racognised in the statement
of financial performance.

Financial liabilities:

Financial llabllities measured at fair value

Financlal liabilities at fair value are stated at fair value, with any resulted gain or loss recognised in the statement of financial
parformance.

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Any other financial liabilities are classified as other financial fiabilities (All payables, loans and borrowings are classified as
other liabilities) and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, Trade and other payables, interest-bearing
debt including finance lease liabilities, non-interest-bearing debt and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense is recognised in the statement of financial performance by
applying the effective interest rate.
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1.7 Financlal instruments (continued)
1.12.4 Impalrment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
financial assets are impaired whera there is objectiva avidence of impairment of Financial Assets (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor). If thers is such evidence the recoverable amount is estimated and
an impairment loss is recognised in accordance with GRAP 104,

A provision for impairment of trade receivables Is established when there is objective evidence that

the municipality will not be able to collect ail amounts due according to the original terms of recaivables.

The provision Is made in accordance with GRAP 104 whaereby the recoverability of accounts receivable is
assessed individually and then collectively aftsr grouping the assets in financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics. The amount of the provision Is the difference between the trade receivables' carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Future
cash flows in a group of Financial Assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated an the
basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit rigk charactsristics similar to those In the group. Cash
flows relating to short-term trade receivables are not discounted where the effect of discounting is immaterial,

Government accounts are not provided for as such accounts are regarded as recoverable.

The carrying amount of the Financial asset is raduced by the impairment loss diractly for all Financial assets

carried at amortised cost with the exception of consumer debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced

through the use of an provision far doubtfull debtors account. When a consumer debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written
off

against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
revenue. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the statament of financial
performance.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference betwean tha carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses shall not be reversed,

1.12.5 Derecognition
FInanclal assets

The municipality derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
transfars the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity, except when
council approves the write-off of financial assets due to non-recoverability.

if the municipality neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the municipality recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the municipality retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
municipality continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received,

Financlal liabilitles

The municipality derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the municipality's obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire,

The municipality recognises the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability {or part of a financial liability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, in the statement of financial performance.

21



Ugu District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies

1.8 inventories
Initial recognition

Inventories comprise current assets held-for-sale, current assets for consumption or distribution during the ordinary course of
business. lnventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost genarally refers to the purchase price, plus taxes, transport costs
and any other costs in bringing the Inventories to their current location and condition. Where inventory is manufactured,
constructed or produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads used during the manufacturing process.

Where inventory is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (l.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is
deamed to be equai to the fair value of the item on the date acquired.

Direct costs relating to properties that will be sold as Inventory are accumulated for each separately identifiable developmant.
costs also inciude a proportion of overhead costs.

Subsequent measurement.
Consumable stores, maintanance stores, and water:

Consumable stores, raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value
(net amount that the municipality expects to realise from the sale on inventory in the ordinary course of business). In general,
the basis of determining cost is the weighted average cost of commodities. If Inventories are to be distributed at no charge or
for a nominal charge, they are valued at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.

Water inventory:

Water is regarded as inventory when the municipaiity purchases water in bulk with the intention to resell it to the consumers or
to use itinternally, or where the municipality has incurred purification costs on water obtained from natural resources (rain,
rivers, springs, boreholes, etc.). However, water in dams, that are filled by natural resources and that has not yet been treated,
that is under the control of the municipality but cannot be measured reliably as there is no cost attached to the water, is
therefore not recognised in the statement of financial position.

The basis of determining the cost of water purchased and not yet sold at statement of financial position date comprises all
costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the Inventory to its present location and condition,
net of trade discounts and rebates.

Water and purified effluent are valued by using the First In First Out Method, at the lowest of purified cost and net realisable
value, insofar as it is stored and controlled in reservoirs at year-end,

Redundant and slow-moving Inventories are identified and written down from cost to net realisable value with regard to their
astimated economic or realisable values and sold by public auction. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses, Differances arising on the measurement of such
inventory at the lower of cost and net realisable value are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the yearin
which they arise. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of Inventories arising from an increase in net realisable value or
current replacement cost is recognised as a reduction in the amount of Inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

The carrying amount of Inventorias is recognised as an expense in the period that the inventory was sold, distributed, written
off or consumed, uniess that cost qualifies for capitalisation to the cost of another asset.

1.9 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups
Initial recognition

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held-for-sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale fransaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as meat only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition, Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification,
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1.9 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups {continued)
Subsequent measurement

Non-current assels and disposal groups classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

A non-current asset is not depreciated (or amortised) while it is classified as held-for-sale, or while it is part of a disposal group
classified as held-for-sale.

Interest and other expanses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held-for-sale are recognised in surplus
or deficit.

The gain or loss on the eventual sale of non-current assets held-for-sale is Included in the statement of financial performance
as gain or loss on sale of assets. The gain or loss on the eventual sale of non-current assets held-for-sale is calculated on the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the individual asset or the disposal group.

1.10 Revenue recognition

Revenue s derived from a variety of sources which include rates levied, grants from other spheres of government and revenue
from trading activities and other services provided.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the municipality's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, retumns, rebates and discounts.

The municipality recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be relfably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and when specific criteria have been met for each of the municipality's
activities as described below, except when specifically stated otherwise. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The municipality bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
Furthermore, services rendered are recognised by reference to the stage of complation of the transaction at the reporting date,

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the municipality directly in return for services
rendered/goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the municipality recsived revenue from another entity
without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally
recognised to the extent that the related receipt or recsivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no liability to
repay the amount,

1.14.2 Revenue from exchange transactions
Services charges
Service charges are levied in terms of approved tariffs.

Service charges from water are based on consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis and are recognised as revenue
when inveiced, Provisional estimates of consumption, based on the consumption history, are made monthly when meter
readings have not been performed. The provisional estimates of consumption are recognised as revenue when invoiced,
except at year-end when estimates of consumption up to year-end are recorded as revanue without it being invoiced.
Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period in which meters have been read. These
adjustments are recognised as revenue in the invoicing period. In respect of estimates of consumption between the last
reading date and the reporting date, an accrual is made based on the average monthly consumption of consumers,

Service charges from sewsrage and sanitation are based on the type of service and the number of sewer connections on all
developed property and water consumption, using the tariffs appraved by the Council, and are levied monthly,

In circumstances where services cannot readily be measured and quantified, a fiat rate service charge is levied monthly on
such properties.
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1.10 Revenue recognition (continued)
Finance Income

Interest eamed on investments is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the time proportionate basis that
takes into account the effective yield on the investment.

Interest earned on the following investments is not recognised in the statement of financial performance:
¢  Interest @arned on unspent conditional grants is allocated directly to the craditor: Unspent conditional grants, if the
grant conditions indicate that interest is payable to the funder.

Rentals received
Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreament.
Tariff charges

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when the relevant service is rendered by
applying the relevant advertised tariff, This includes the issuing of licances and permits.

1.14.3 Ravenue from non-exchange transactions

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction, that meets the definition of an asset shall ba recognised as an asset
when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential assaciated with the asset will flow 1o the municipality

and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. The asset shall be recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a
liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

A present obligation arising from a non-exchange transaction that meets the definition of a liability will be recognised as a
fiability when it is probable that an outflow of economic benafit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made.

Government grants and recelpts

Conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the municipality has complied with any
of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreemant. Where the agreement contains a stipulation to retumn the
asset, other future economic benefits or service potential, in the event of non-compliance to these stipulations and would be
enforced by the transferor, a liability Is recognised to the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met.
Where such requirements are not enforceable, or where past experience has indicated that the transferor has never enforced
the requirement to return the transferred asset, other future economic benefits or service potential when breaches have
occurred, the stipulation will be considered a restriction and is recognised as revenue.

Government granis that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support fo the municipality with no future related costs, are recagnised in the statement of financial
performance in the period in which they become receivable.

Interest eamed on investments is treated in accordance with grant conditions, If it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part
of the creditor and if it is the municipality’s interest, it is recognised as interest earned in the Statement of Financial
Performance,

Revenua is recognised when all conditions associated with the contribution have been met or where the contribution is to
finance property, plant and equipment, when such items of praperty, plant and equipment are brought into use.
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Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Public contributions

Donations and funding are recognised as revenus to the extent that the municipality has complied with any of the criteria,
conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. Where the agreement contains a stipulation to return the asset, other
future economic benefits or service potential, in the event of non-compliance to these stipulations and would be enforced by the
transfaror, a liability is recognised to the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met. Where such
requirements are not enforceable, or where past experience has indicated that the transferor has never enforcad the
requirement to refurn the transferred asset, other future economic benefits or service potential when braaches have occurred,
the stipulation will be considered a restriction and is recognised as revenue.

Revenue from public contributions is recognised when all conditions associated with the contribution have been met or where
the contribution is to finance property, plant and equipment, whan such items of propetrty, plant and equipment are brought into
use.

Assets acquired from non-sxchange transactions are measured at fair value in accordance with the Standards of GRAP.
Revenus from recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitiess and wasteful expenditure

Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitiess and wastefu expenditure is based on legislated
precedures, including those set out in the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act No 56 of 2003) and is
recognised when the recovery thereof from the responsible councillors ar officials is virtually certain. Such
revenue is based on lagislated procedures.

1.11 Provisions

Provisions ara recognised when the municipality has a present or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service patential will be required to settia the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation is the amount that the municipality would
rationally pay to settle the obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a third party at that time and are determined by the
judgment of the management of the municipality, supplemented by experience of similar transactions and, in some cases,
reports from independent experts, The evidence considered includes any additional evidence provided by events after the
reporting date. Uncertainties surrounding the amount to be recognised as a provision are dealt with by various means
according to the circumstances. Where the provision being measured invoives a large population of items, the obligation is
estimated by weighting all possible outcomes by their asseciated probabilities.

Fulure events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there
is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Gains from the expected disposal of assels are not taken into account in
measuring a provision. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The present obligation under an onerous
contract is recognised and measured as a provision. An onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefils expected to be received under it. The unavoidable
costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any
compansation or penallies arising from failure to fulfil it - this unavoidable cost resulting from the contract is the amount of the
provision to be recognised.

Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation. When the effect of discounting is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows that reflact current market assessments of the time value of money. The impact of the periodic
unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as a finance cost as it ocours,
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1.12 Employee benefits
1.17.1 Short-term employee benefits

Remuneration to employees Is racognised in the statement of financial performance as the services are rendered, except for
non-accumulating benefits which are only recognised when the specific event occurs.

The costs of all short-term employee benefits such as leave pay, are recognised during the period in which the employes
renders the related service. The liability for leave pay is based on the total accrued leave days at year end and is shown as an
accrual in the statement of financial position. The municipality recognises the expected cost of performance bonuses only when
the municipality has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payment and a reliable estimate can be made.
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued)
1.17.2 Post-smployment benefits

The municipality provides retirement banefits for its employees and councillors, and has both defined benefit and defined
contribution post-employment plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
municipality has no legal or constructive obligation te pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to service In the current or prior perieds. The municipality's contributions to the defined
contribution funds are established in terms of the rules governing those plans. Contributions are racognised in the statement of
financial performance in the period in which the service is rendered by the relevant employees. The municipality has no further
payment obligations once the contribulions have been paid, The contributions are recagnised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is availabls.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan Is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Post-retirement health care benefits:

The municipality has an abligation to provide post-retirement health care benefits to certain of its relireas. According to the
rules of the medical aid funds with which the municipality is associated, a member (who is on the current conditions of service),
on retirement, is enfitled to remain a continued member of the medical aid fund, in which case the municipality is liable for a
certain portfon of the medical aid membership fee. Not all medical aid funds, with which the municipality is associated, provide
for continued membership.

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and unrecognised actuarial
gains and losses, reduced by unrecognised past service costs. The plan is unfunded. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation Is calculated using the projected unit credit method, incorporating actuarial assumptions and a discount rate based
on the government bond rate, Vaiuations of these obligations are carried out every year by independent qualified actuaries,

Acluarial gains or losses are accounted for using the corridor Method. Actuarial gains and losses are sligible for recognition in
the statement of financial performance to the extant that they exceed 10 per cent of the present value of the gross defined
bensfit obligations in the scheme at the end of the previous reporting period, Actuarial gains and losses exceeding 10 per cent
are spread over the expected average remaining working lives of the employess participating in the scheme.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the
empioyees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting pericd). In this case, the past-service costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Long-setvice allowance;

The municipality has an obligation to provide long-service allowance benefits to all of its employees, According to the rules of
the long-service allowance scheme, which the municipality instituted and operates, an employes (wha is on the current
conditions of Service), is entitled to a cash aliowancs, calculated in terms of the rules of the scheme, after 10, 15, 20, 25 and
30 years of continued service. The municipalitys liability is based on an actuarial valuation. The projected unit credit method is
used to vajue the liabilities. Actuarial gains and losses on the long-term incentives are accounted for through the statement of
financial performance,

Defined benefit pension plans

The municipality has an obligation 1o provide post-retirament pension benefits to certain of its retirees, Pension contributions in
respect of employees who were not members of a pension fund are recognised as an expense when incurred. Staff provident
funds are maintained to accommeodate personnel who, due to age, cannot join or be part of the various pension funds, The
municipality contributes monthly to the funds.
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1.12 Employee benefits {continued)

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for
unracognised past-service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obiigation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated In the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the tarms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains or losses are accounted for using the corridor method. Actuarial gains and losses are eligible for racognition in
the statement of financial performance to the extent that they exceed 10 per cent of the present value of the gross dafined
benefit obligations In the scheme at the end of the previous reporting period. Actuarial gains and losses exceeding 10 per cent
are spread over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the scheme.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional on the
employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

1.13 Leases
Classification

Leases are classified as finance ieases where substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of an asset are
transferred to the municipality.

Leases of proparty, plant and equipment, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor ara classified as operating leases.

1.18.1 The municipality as lessee
Finance leases

Where the municipality enters into a finance lease, property, plant and equipment or intangible assets subject to finance lease
agreements ars capitalised at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the incaption of the |ease, Corresponding liabilities are included in the statement of
financial position as finance lease Habilities. The corresponding liabilities are initially recognised at the inception of the lease
and are measured as the sum of the minimum lease payments due in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for the effect
of interest. In discounting the lease payments, the municipality usas the interest rate that exactly discounts the lzase payments
and unguaranteed rasidual value to the fair value of the asset plus any diract costs incurred, Leass payments are allocated
between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method. Lease finance costs are
expansed when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance with the stated accounting policies
applicable to property, plant, equipment or intangibles, The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments, which are allocated
between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method, Lease finance costs are
expensed when incurred. The accounting policies relating to derecognition of financial instruments are applied to lease
payables. The lease asset is depreciated Gver the shorter of the asset's useful Iife or the lease term,

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue Is recognised as revenue on a straight-ine basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in stalement of financial performance.
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1.13 Leases {continued)
Operating leases

The municipality recognises operating lease rentals as an expense in the Statement of Financial Parformance on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. The difference between the amounts racognised as an expense and the contractual
payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter Into operating leases, such Incentives are racognised as a liability. The
aggregate banefit of incentives is recognised as a raduction of rental expense on a Straight-line Basis, except where ancther
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset ara consumed.

1.14 Grants In ald

The municipality transfers money to individuals, organisations and other sectors of government from time to time. When
making these transfers, the municipality does not:

*  Recelve any goods or sarvices directly in return, as would be expected in a purchase or sale transaction;

*  Expect to be repaid in future; or

. Expect a financial return, as would be expected from an investment.

These transfers are recognised in the statement of financial pefformance as expenses in the period that the events giving rise
to the transfer occurred.

1.15 Value added tax

The Municipality accounts for value added tax on the payments basis in accordance with section 15{2)(a) of the value-added
tax act (Act No 89 of 1991).

The entity accounts for value added tax on the invoice basis in accordance with section 15(1) of the value- added tax act (Act
No 88 of 1991).

1.16 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted for, expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an
allocation received from another sphere of government, municlpality or organ of state, and expenditure in the form of a grant
thatis not permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act No 56 of 2003). All expenditure relating to
Unauthorised expendilure is accounted for as an expense in the statement of financial parformance in the year that the
expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it
is subsaquently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. If the expendilure is not condoned by the
council, it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irracoverable.

1.17 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No 56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act (Act No 32 of 2000, the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No 20 of 1998), or is in contravention of the
Municipality’s or Municipal Entities’ Supply Chain Management Policies. Irregular expenditure excludes Unauthorised
Expenditure, Irregular expenditure is accounted for as an expensa in the statement of financial performance in the period it
occurred and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance, If the
expenditure is not condoned by the council, it is treated as an asset uniil it is recovered or written off as imecoverable.

1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care
been exercised, All expenditure relating to Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the statement
of financtal parfermance in the year that the expenditure was incurred, The expenditure is classified in accordance with the
nature of the expenss, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial
performance. If the expenditure is not condoned by the council, it is treated as an asset until it is recoverad or written off as
irecoverable,
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1.19 Contingent assets and contingent liabllities

Contingent liabllities represent a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existance will be confirmed only by
an accurrance of nan-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the municipality. A
contingent liability can also arise as a result of a present obligation that arises from past events but which is not recognised as
a liability either because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the cbligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assels represent possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will ba confirmed only by an
occurrsnce or nan-eccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the municipality.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in notes to the annual financial
statements.

1.20 Commitments

Commitments are future expenditure to which the municipality committed and that will result in the outfiow of resources.
Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of
financial performance, but are included in the disclosurs Notes. A distinction is made between capital and current
commitments.

1.21 Related parties

Individuals as well as their close family members, and/or entities are related parties if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to cantrot or jointly control the other party or exarcise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and/or operating declsions. Key management personnel is dafined as the municipal manager, chief financial officer and all
other managers reporting directly to the municipal manager or as designated by the municipal manager.

1.22 Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the annual financial
statements. The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting period have been
disclosed in notes to the annual financial statements,

1.23 Comparative flgures
Current year comparatives

In accordance with GRAP 1 Budgeted Amounts have been provided and forms part of the annual financial statements.

Prior year comparatives

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are reclassified. The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed.

Budget information

The annual budget figures have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standard and are consistent with the accounting
policies adopted by tha council for the preparation of these annual financial statements. Explanatory comment is provided in
the statement giving reasons for averall growth or decline in the budget and motivations for over- ar under spending on line
items. The annual budget figures included in the annual financial statements are for the municipality and do not include budget
information relating to subsidiaries or associates. These figures are those approved by the council at the beginning and during
the year following a period of consultation with the public as part of the Integrated development plan,

1.24 Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, rather than for:

*  usein the production or supply of goods or services or for

*  administrative purposes, or

*  sale in the ordinary course of operations.
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1.24 Investment property (continued)

Owner-occupled property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services of for administrative
purposes,

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that
are assaciated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investmsnt property
can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, ils cost is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition,

Costs Include costs incurred Initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, of to replace a part of, or service a property. If a

replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in surpius or deficit
when the compensation becomes receivable.

Property intarests held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as investment property in the following
circumstances;

When classification is difficult, the criteria used to distinguish investment property from owner-occupied property and from
property held for sale in the ordinary course of operations, are as follows:

1.25 Investments
1.26 Standards, amendments to standards and Intorpretations Issued

The following GRAP standard has been issued but is not yet effeclive and has been early adopted by the municipality:
*  GRAP 104 Financial Instruments - issued October 2009

GRAP 104 will be effective for the period starting after 1 April 2012. The municipality elected to adopt the
standard during the 2010/11 financial year.

The following GRAP Standards have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the municipality:

Segment Reporting — issued March 2005

Related Party Disclosures - revised

Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets — issued March 2009

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions {Taxes and Transfers) ~ issued February 2008
Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statemsnts — issued November 2007
Employee Benefils — issued December 2002

Impairment of Cash-generaling Assets — issued March 2009

Haritage Assets - issued July 2008

Transfers between Entities under common control — issusd November 2010

Transfers between Entities not under common control - issued November 2010

Mergers — issued November 2010

Application of all of the above GRAP standards will be effective from a date 1o be announced by the Minister of
Finance, who announced that the application of GRAP 21, GRAP 23, GRAP 24, GRAP 26 and GRAP 103 will be
effective for the period starting after 1 April 2012, All other standards as listed above will only be effective when
a date is announced by the Minister of Finance. This date is not currently available.

The ASB Directive 5, paragraph 29, sets out the principles for the application of the GRAP 3 guidelines in the
delermination of the GRAP Reporting Framework hierarchy as set out in the standard of GRAP 3 on Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
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1.26 Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued {continued)

Where a standard of GRAP Is approved as effective, it replaces the equivalent statement of International
Publlc Sector Accounting Standards Board, International Financial Reporting Standards or Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles. Where a standard of GRAP has been Issued but is not yet in effect, the municipality
may select to apply the principles astablished in that standard in developing an appropriate Accounting Policy
dealing with a particular section or event before applying paragraph 12 of the Standard of GRAP on Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The Municipality applied the principles established in the following Standards of GRAP that have been issued
but not yet effective, in developing appropriate Accounting Policles dealing with the following transactions, but
have not early adopted these Standards:

*  Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets (GRAP 21 — issued March 2009)

*  Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (GRAP 23 — issued February 2008)

*  Impairment of Cash-generating Assets (GRAP 26 - issued March 20089)

+  Financial nstruments (GRAP 104 - issued Qctober 2009)

Management has considered all of the above-mentioned GRAP standards issued but not yet effective and
anticipates that the adoption of these standards will not have a significant impact on the financial position,
financial performance or cash flows of the municipality.
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Figures in Rand 2014 2013

2, Inventorles

Inventories comprise:

Consumable stores 1332919 915 390

Maintenance materials 6 287 305 4 248 259

Water 438 535 1733675

Other goods held for resale 10 657 41 465
8 069 416 €938 789

The municipality has identified and measured all Inventory in terms of GRAP 12 for the financial year ended 30 June 2014,

The balances of the Inventories have accordingly been restated retrospectively.
Inventories are held for own use with the result that no write downs of Inventory to net realisable vaius are required.
The cost of water production for the year amounted to R1,78 per kilolitre (2013: R1,43 per kilolitre),

No inventories have been pledged as collateral for lizbiities of the municipality,

3. Operating lease receivables and payables

Operating lease recelivables

Operating leases are recognised on the straight-line basis as per the requirement of GRAP 13. In respect of non-cancellable

Cperating leases the following assets have been recognised:
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3. Operating lease recelvables and payables (continued)

Balance at beginning of year 43 785 -
Operating lease revenue recorded 889 586 674 217
Operating lease revenue from smoothing (876 921) {630 433)
Total Operating Lease Assets 57 450 43 784

Leasing Arrangements

The Municlpality as Lessor:

Operating leases relate to property cwned by the municipality with lease terms of between 1 to 3 years, with an option to
extend. All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew.
The lessea does not have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Amounts receivable under operating leases

At the reporting date the following minimum lease payments were receivable under non-cancellable operating leases for
property, plant and equipment, which are receivable as follows:

Up to 1 year 934 117 875 921
2toSyears 228 287 1162 408
Total 1162404 2038 326

The impact of charging the escalations in operating leases on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease has been a
decrease in current year income of R57 450 (2013; R43 785).

The following restrictions (if any) have been imposed by the municipality in terms of the (specify) lease agreements:
() The lessee shall not have the right to sublet, cede or assign the whole or any portion: of the premises let.

(i) The lessor or its duly authorised agent, representative or servant shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the
premises let.

{iii) The lessee shall use the premises let for the sole purpose prescribed in the agreement,
Operating lease liabilities

Operating Leases are recognised on the straight-line basis as per the requirement of GRAP 13,
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3. Operating lease recelvables and payables (continued)

Balance at beginning of year 34 011 -
Operating lease expenses recorded 686 812 363 151
Operating lease payments from smoothing {661 421) (329 140)
Total Operating Lease Liabllities §9 402 34011

Leasing arrangements

The munlcipality as lessee

Operating leases relate to property, plant and equipment with lease terms not longer than 5 years, with an option to extend for
a further period. All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the municipality exercises its
option to renew. The municipality does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.
Amounts payable under Operating Leases

At the reporting date the municipality had outstanding commitments under nen-cancellable operating leases for property, plant
and equipment, which fall due as follows:

Property Plant and Equipment: 1455 476 1 538 484
Within one year 849670 697 154
In the second to third years, inclusive 477 272 941 340
Over three years 128 534 -
Total operating lease arrangements 1456 476 1538 494

The following payments have been recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance:
Minimum lease payments 686 812 363 151

Total operating lease expenses 686 812 363151

The municipality has operating lease agreements for the following classes of assets, which are only significant collectively:
- Office equipment

The following restrictions have been imposed on the municipality in terms of the lease agreements on office equipment:

(i) The equipment shall remain the property of the lessor,

{i) The hirer shall not sell, sublet, cede, assign or delegate any of its rights or obligations on the equipment

(iiiy The equipment shall be returned in goed order and condition to the lessor upon termination of the agreement,

{iv) The municipality is obliged to enter into a maintenance agreement with the lessor for the equipment rented.
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4. Recelvables from non-exchange transactions

Payments made in advance 1920 985 63 406
Government subsidy claims 236 950 150 503
Insurance claims 122 367 122 367
Municipal entities 66 846 50 979
Sundry deposits 893075 1 003 808
Sundry debtors 6 528 961 7 166 331

9769194 8 5§57 494

The average credit pariod for government grants and subsidies is dependent on the government depariment involved and the
nature of the claim. No interest is charged on outstanding government grants and subsidies. The subsidies are payable to the
municipality due to allocations made in the DORA or based on agreements between the municipality and the relevant
departments.

Insurance claims are amounts which are claimable In terms of the insurance contract entered into by the municipality. The
average wailing period depends on the nature of the claim. No interest is charged on oulstanding insurance claims,

Sundry receivables are in respect of debits outstanding at year-end on nermal business transactions entered into by the
municipality.

The average credit period for receivables is 30 days. No interest is charged for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice.
Thereafter interest is charged at the prime rate, charged by the municipality's banker, plus one percent per annum on the
outstanding balance. The municipality strictly enforces its approved credit control policy to ensure the recovery of receivables.
The municipality does not hold deposits or other security for its receivables,

None of the receivables have been pledged as security for the municipality's financial liabifities,

Ths management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of receivables approximate their fair values.

Receivables from non-exchange transactions past due but not impaired

As at 30 June receivables of R19 772 929 (2013: R8 580 535) were past due but not impaired. The age analysis of these
receivables are as follows:

+ 80 days 19772 929 8 580 535
Reconcillation of provision for impairment of receivables from non-exchange transactions

Opening balance 4 478 748 3575783

The Provision for Impairment on receivables exists predominantly due to the possibility that these amounts may not be
recovered, The receivables were assessed individually and grouped together at the Statement of Financial Position as financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collactively assessed for impairment.

The provision for impairment was calculated after grouping all the financial assets of similar nature and risk ratings and
assessing the recoverability.

In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the municipality congiders any change in the credit quality of the receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to most of these
being sundry in nature,

The following Loans and Receivables are included in the total amount of the provision for impairment:

Government Subsidy Claims 1613 200 1613200
Sundry Debtors 2 865 549 1 962 583
Total provision for impairment on receivables from non-exchange transactions 4478 749 3575783
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5. VAT receivable
VAT recelvable 15020053 23 240458

VAT is payable on the payments basis. Once payment is received from customers/receivables, VAT is paid over to SARS.

No interest is payable to SARS if the VAT is paid over timeously, but interest for late payments is charged according to SARS
policies. The municipality has financial risk policies in place to ensure that payments are effected before the due date.

8. Receivables from exchange transactions

Gross
Water rates 33776 121 35 474 484
Water 133667691 108 904 320
Sewerage 52276208 40515211
Other trade 5435 946 8070415
225165966 192964 410
Less: allowance for Impairment
Water rates (20865 279) (22 167 383)
Water (56 939 832) (48 868 401)
Sewerage (11224 857) (16694 009)
Other trade {3698070) (3698 070)
(92728 038) (91 427 853)
Net balance
Water rates 12 910 842 13 307 081
Water 76727859 60035919
Sewerage 41 051 351 23 821 202
Other trade 1737876 4372345
132427 928 101 536 547

Al 30 June 2014, the Municipality is owed R10 368 897 (30 June 2013: R7 859 220) by national and provincial government.

The municipaiity did not pledge any of its trade receivables as security for borrowing purposes.

Water rates
Current (0 -30 days) 2808935 1102 260
31 - 60 days 3910 22 578
61 - 90 days 16 310 25 940
+ 90 days 10 081 687 12 156 303
12910842 13 307 081
Water
Current (0 -30 days) 22884008 23709106
31 -60 days 3689 465 4279707
61 - 90 days 4083 216 217173
+ 90 days 46071170 31829933
76727859 60035919
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6. Receivables from exchange transactions {contl nuad)

Sowerage

Current (0 -30 days) 66885203 13867175

31 - 60 days 2099 131 2173643

61 - 90 days 1971654 1273 119

+ 90 days 30 095 363 6 407 265
41051351 23821202

Other trade

+ 90 days 1737 876 4372 345

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying trade value of receivables approximate their fair values.
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6. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Summary of debtors by customer classification

Domestic

Current (0 -30 days) 21621161 35173 209

31 -60days 5815 882 4 758 000

61 - 90 days 6261 244 4 694 645

+ 90 days 124 848424 99614 337
158 546 711 144 240 191

Less: Allowance for impairment (62604 715) (75 035 443)

105941996 69 204 748

Industriali commerelal

Current (0 -30 days) 9 836 378 9034 100
31 - 60 days 2515289 2925 828
61 - 90 days 1722 601 1515436
+ 90 days 22032027 19309219
36106295 32784 583
Less: Allowance for impairment (35319990} (12 694 349)

786305 20090 234

Natlonal and provincial government

Current {0 -30 days) 3931693 3139280
31 -60 days 1421 887 800 173
61 - 90 days 1270553 398 296
+ 90 days 3744 864 3531471

10 368 997 7 B69 220

Other
+ 90 days 5 435 846 8 070 414
5 435 946 8070414
Less: Allowance for impairment (3698070) (3 698 070}
1737876 4372344
Total
Current (0 -30 days) 54415113 47 345 589
31 - 60 days 9753 057 8 484 001
61 - 90 days 9 254 389 6 608 377
+ 90 days 150618 525 130 525 442
224 041094 192 964 409
Less: Allowance for impairment (91613 166) (91427 862)

132427928 101536 547

Amounts written off as uncollectable.

Consumer debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on the financial condition of these debtors.

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment

Balance at beginning of the year (92 542 735) (117 236 461)
Debt impairment written off against allowance (185 303) -
Reversal of allowance - 25808598

(92728 038) (91427 863)
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7. Long-term receivables

Current portion of long-term receivables

Relocation Loans 28 442 47 824
Sundry Loans 3600 3600
32 042 51424

Non-current portion of jong-term receivables

2014 Gross Provision for Net balances
balances  impairment
R R R
Relocation loans 35553 - 35553
Sundry loans 38983 - 3893
39446 - 39 446
Less: Current portion: transferred to current receivables - - 32 042
Relocation loans - - {28 442
Sundry loans - - 00
39 446 - 7404
2013 Gross Provision for Net balances
balances  impairment
R R R
Relocation loans 110823 - 110623
Sundry loans 11 093 - 11083
121 716 - 121716
Less: Cuirent portion transferred to current receivables - - 51 424
Relocation loans - - (47 824
Sundry loans - - 600
121 716 - 70 292
Ageing of jong-term recelvables
Past due:
+ 120 days 39446 121716
39 446 121 716
8. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of;
Current investments 8292 741 12721 257
Bank balances 162373720 59026 230
Cash float and advancements 4910 4910
Bank overdraft {3343474) (3195 209)
157 327 897 68 557 188
Current assets 160671 371 71 752 397
Current liabilities (3343474) (3195209)

157 327 897 68 557 188

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include
cash-on-hand, cash in banks and investments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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8. Cashand cash equivalents (continued)

Current investment
Call deposits 7560313 12012570
Notice deposits 732 428 708 €87

8202741 12721257

The municipality had the following bank accounts

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone 106 422 417 315 5 568 4544

- Account Number 406 668 6529

{Primary Bank Account):

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone {1 522 481) 470 667 (3343474) (3195 209)

- Account Number 406 668 8472

(General Bank Account):

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone 897 611 742 351 873676 716 280

- Account Number 406 668 6294

{Collection Account):

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone 2 874 066 2450698 654 262 519 870
- Account Number 406 671 0647

{Consumer Deposits Bank

Account);

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone 259 244 136 729 140 753 57 474
- Account Number 406 660 3763

(Salaries Account):

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone 4148 944 4116 840 4114 803 4 116 840
- Account Number 406 757 0977

{Sanlam Group Life Account):

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone 120 008 379 597 120 005 379 597
- Account Number 406 668 6367

(MIG Project Account):

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone 199 600 200 370 199 600 200 370
- Account Number 407 187 0797

(Disaster Account):

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstone 371 245 371998 371 245 371 9908
- Account Number 407 198 0239

(Market Account):

Absa Bank Lid - Port Shepstone 1640 2 346 1640 2346
- Account Number 407 626 7341

{EFF Bank Account):

Absa Bank Ltd - Port Shepstons 145892168 52 656 911 145892 168 52 656 911
- Account Number 407 755 1917

{Conditional Grants Account):

Total 183 348464 61945822 149030 246 55 831 021

The municipality did not pledge any of its cash and cash equivalents as collateral for its financial liabilities.

No restrictions have been imposed on the municipality in terms of the utilisation of its cash and cash equivalents.
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9. Investment property

The Municipality has classified the Ugu Fresh Produce Market as investment property in terms of its asset management policy.
The property is situated at Bhobhoyi — in the Port Shepstone Town Planning Scheme, lot no 3248 and measures approximately
85 000 square metres. The property was valued in February 2012 by Elliot Properties, a qualified industrialist property
spacialist (DIPCIS) CCIS, using the income method of valuation. The market offers 18 vendor stalls for retailers, refrigerated
storage, a wholesale/agents sales hall, a state-of-the-art multi-purpose ripening facllity, an office block, ample parking space, a
taxi rank and plenty ablution facilities. The whole facllity is secured with 24-hour security guards,

The municipality uses the fair value model to value its investment properties. For the year ending 30 June 2013, Management
did not deem it necessary to revalue the market at fair value. This was due to market conditions remaining the same as at the
original valuation done in February 2012 and no other material factors that could impact on the value of the property, and the
work in progress of the pack house at year end.

24 2013
Valuation Accumulated Carrying value Valuation Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
Impalrment impalrment
Investment property 25 000 000 - 25000000 25000000 - 25000000
Reconciliation of investment property - 2014
Opening Increase / Total
balance {decrease)in
fair value
Investment property 25 000 000 - 26000000
Reconcillation of Investment property - 2013
Opening Transfers Increase / Total
balance {decrease}in
fair value
Invastment property - 25000000 - 25000000

Revenue and Expenditure disclosed in the Statement of Financial Performance

include the following:

Rental Revenue earnad from Investment Property 1726 310 1178 664
Direct Operating Expenses (824 534) (1235 603)

The following assumptions were used;
Discount rate -% 1%
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10. Property plant and equipment
2014 2013
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depraciation Valuation  depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impalrment impalrment
Land and buildings 502708824 (18466 131) 484322693 498928258 (16 050710) 462877 548
Infrastructurs 2654 2850791 006 409 011) 1647676068 2353579118 (961 821 576) 1 392 157 542
Community 118768140 {18678290) 100089850 118768140 (13349603) 105 418 537
Other 137 033007 (96 687 834) 40345173 128363461 (87 481 905) 40 881 556
Total 3412875050 (1140 241 266)2 272 633 784 3 100 038 977 (1 078 703 794) 2 021 335 183

Reconclliation of property plant and equipment - 2014

Opening Additions Transfers  Depreclation Total
balance
Land and buildings 482 877 548 3 860 566 - {2415 421) 484 322 693
Infrastructure 1392167 542 333367534 (33061573) (44 587 435)1 647 876 068
Community 105 418 537 - - {56328 687) 100089 850
Other 40881556 11 494 899 489622 (12520904) 40345173
2021335183 348722999 (32571 951) (64 852447)2 272633784
Reconclliation of property plant and equipment - 2013
Opening Additions Transfers Depreciation Impairment Total
balance
Land and buildings 483 239 420 8 500 (175 394) {194 978) - 482877 548
Infrastructure 1452101104 994801 (16944 550) (43993 813) « 1392 157 542
Community 135316 414 1046154 (25000000) (5311 148) (632 883) 105 418 537
Other 34 300 032 2397989 13777198 (8 593 664) - 40881556
2104 956 970 4 447 444 (28 342 745) (59 093 603) {632 883)2 021 335183

Gross Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment that Is Fully Depreclated and Still in Use

There are 1620 items of property, plant and equipment that are fully depreciated at year-end and still in use by the municipality;

At original cost:

Land and buildings 3219387 3219287
QOther 54 288062 54288 062
Gross carrying amount of PPE fully depreciated and still in use 57507449 57 507 449

Carrying Amount of property, plant and equipment retired from active use and held for disposal

The municipality’s obligations under Finance Leases (see Note 18) are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets. No
other assets of the municipality have been pledged as security.

Change in estimate ~ useful Iife of property, plant and equipment reviewed

There was no change in the estimated useful life in the current and prior year,

Owner-occupied property transferred to investment property
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10. Property plant and equipment (continued)

The municipality had taken a decision in the 2012/201 3 financial year that the buildings of the Ugu Fresh Produce Market,
previously owner occupled and carried under the cost model, will from the beginning of the 2012/2013 year be held to earn
rentals and should therefore be transferred to investment property carried under the fair value model. Please note that no
depriciation was recognised in the prior year as the transfer was done at the beginning of the financial year,

Ugu fresh produce market

Opening balance - 25632883
Cost -1 29120466
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses - (3 487 583
Additions - -
Depreciation - -
Impairment loss - {632 883)
Carrying amount of transfers - 25000000
Cost -l 29120488
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses - {4 120 456
Transfer to investment property (see Note 11) - {25000 000)
Closing balance = 0
Cost = B
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses - -
11. Intangible assets
2014 2013
Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation amortisation
Computer software 29 304 877 (22 384 465) 6940412 270685514 (19410133) 7 655 381
Servitudes 2 659 159 - 2659 159 2579372 - 2579372
Total 31964036 (22 364 465) 9598571 20644886 (19410133) 10234753
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014
Opening Additions Disposals Amortisation Total
balance
Computer software 7 655 381 2389 363 {(31068) (30732684) 6940412
Servitudes 2579372 78787 - - 2 659 159
10 234 753 2469 150 {31068) (3 073 264) 9 599 51
Reconcillation of Intangible assets - 2013
Opening Additions  Amortisation Total
balance
Computer software 9 834 448 364 400 {2 643 467) 7 655 381
Senviludes 2 559 642 19 730 - 2579372
12 494 090 384 130 {2643 467) 10234 753

The amortisation expense has been included in the line item “Depreciation and amortisation” in the Statement of Financial

Performance (see note 30),

No intangible assets have been pledged as security for any liabilities of the municipality.

The following restrictions apply to Intangible Assets:

- Financial Software:

{i) The system is non-assignable, non-transferable, and the municipality has no exclusive rights to use the system
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11. Intanglble assets (continued)
{li) The system may be used on only one database at any one time.

{ill} The municipality, as the licensee, shall not grant usage of, or distribute, the system in its original or modified form, to a third
party for the third party's benefit.

{iv) The municipality has no intellectual property rights to the system.
Refer to Appendix “B" for more detail on Intangible Assets.
Significant Intangible Assets

Significant Intangible Assets, that did not meet the recognition criteria for Intangible Assets as stipulated in IAS 38 and SIC 32,
are the following:

{i) Website Costs incurred during the last two financial years have been expensed and not recognised as
Intangible Assets. The municipality cannot demonstrate how its website will generate probable future economic banefits,
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

The following classes of Intangible Assets are not amortised as they are regarded as having indefinite useful lives;

Carrying value of servitudes; sewerage distribution 1486723 1486 723
Carrying value of servitudes: water reticulation 1172 435 1093 079
Total carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives 2659158 2 579 802

Servitudes are regardad as having indefinite useful lives as they are registered permanently, the agreements not having a
maturing date.

12. Investments

Unlisted Holding Holding
2014 2013
Investment in municipal entities - at cost 100.00 % 100.00 % 100 100
Total Non-current Investments 100 100
Council's valuation of unlisted investments
Investment in municipal entities 100 100
100 100

The municipality exercises control in the following company, located and commencing its operations on 1 July 2009 in the Ugu
District Municipal area, where the value of the invesiment is considered to ba R100, being the issued share capital:

Ugu South Coast Tourism (Pty) Ltd:

Issued share capital (R) 100 100
Percentage shareholding 100 % 100 %
Grant allocated to municipal Entity (R) 10517850 10017 000
Management's valuation of the investment in the municipal entity (R) 100 100

All thirteen members serving on the board of directors of the municipal entity are nominated by the municipaiity’s executive
committee {13/13 = 100.00%),
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13. Payables
Trade payables 19712204 18 506 575
Retentions 47272573 35579377
Staff leave accrued 17457 961 15268 299
Staff bonuses 9664 818 9248 785
Projects 4410 025 4410025
Other creditors 57861746 52 540094

156 379 327 135 553 155
14, Consumer deposits
Water 19724662 19379 146
Total 19724662 19379148
Guarantees held in lieu of water deposils 495 780 495 780
15. Unspent conditional grants and recelpts
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
National government grants 19667 704 205608634
Provincial government grants 26039881 267846903
Other spheres of government 2 635 501 1113200
Public contributions - 3049 889
Total condltional grants and recsipts 48333086 51508 416
Refer to appendix “F” for more detail on conditional grants,
16. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions 2014

Opening  Contributions Total
Balance

Performance Bonuses 854 208 27 624 881 832

Current Portion of Non-Current Provisions

931 680 (337 136) 594 544

1785 888 (309 512) 1476 376

Reconciliation of provisions 2013

Opening Difference  Transfer from Utilisation Increase / Total
Balance non-currant (decrease) in
contributions
to provision
Performance bonuses 683 576 854 208 - - (683 576) 854 208
Current portion of post- 771 816 {854 208) 854 208 {771 816) - -
retirement medical aid
benefits liability
Current portion of non- 710121 - 931 680 (710 121) - 931 680
current provisions
2165513 - 1785 888 {1481 937) {683 576) 1785888
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17. Long term liabilities

Annuity loans 180426 363 196 417 374
Finance lease liabilities 6 568 282 € 938 939
Sub-total 186994 645 203 355 313
Less: current portion 21 630 386) {16 908 778

Annuity loans {18268 969] (14 610 464
Finance lease liabilities 3 361 417 2 299 314
Total 165 364 259 186 446 535

Annuity loans are repaid over periods varying from 1 to 16 {2013: 1 to 17) years and at interest rates varying from 2,65% to

11,51% (2013: 11,51% to 11,00%) per annum, Annuity loans are not secured.

Finance lease liabilities relates to vehicles with lease term periods of 2 (2013: 3) years. The effective interest rate on finance
leases is 6,6% (2013: 6,6%). Capitalised lease liabilities are secured over the items of vehicles leased.

Refer to Appendix “A” for more detail on external loans.
Obligations under Finance lease liabilitles

The municipality as lessee

Finance leases relate to property, plant and equipment with lease terms not more than 2 years {2013: 3 years).

The effective interest rate on finance leases is 6.6% (2013: 6,6%).

The obligations under finance leases are as follows:

Amounts payable under finance leases: Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum
lease payments
2014 2013 2014 2013

Within one year 3685 138 2680721 3685138 2690721
In the second to third years, inclusive 3161125 4940 297 3161125 4 940 297

€ 846 263 7631018 6 846 263 7631018
Less: Future finance charges (421 061) {692 079) (421 061) (692 079)
Total 6 425 202 €938 939 6 425 202 ©938 939
Less: current portion - - (3361417)y (2299 314)
Non-current portion 6 425 202 6938 939 3063785 4639625
18, Retirement benefit llabilites
Post-retirement health care benefits liabllity
Balance at beginning of year 21375642 18959976
Contributions to provision 3105978 3269874
Balance at end of year 24 481620 22229850
Transfer to current provisions (881 832) (854 208)
Total 23599788 21 375642
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18. Retirement benefit llabilites (continued)

The municipality provides certain post-retirement health care benefits by funding the medical aid contributions of qualifying
retired members of the municipality, According to the rules of the medical aid funds, with which the municipality is associated, a
member is entitled to continue as a member of such meadical aid fund on retirement, in which case the municipality is liable for
a certain portion of the medical aid membership fee. The municipality operates an unfundad defined benefit plan for these
qualifying employees. No other post-retirement benefils are provided to these employees.

The most recent actuarial vaiuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at
3C June 2014 by Mr C Weiss, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa, The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method,

The members of the post-employment health care benefit plan are made up as follows:

In-service members (employees) 494 494
In-service non-members {employees) 5 -
Continuation members 49 48
Total 543 542

The unfunded liability in respect of past sarvice has been estimated as follows:

In-service members 11 201 206 9 061 962
Continuation members 13 280 414 13 167 888
Total Liability 24 481620 22229 850

The currant-service cost for the year ending 30 June 2014 is estimated to be R881 832, whereas the cost for the ensuing year
is estimated to be R952 255 (30 June 2013: R952 255 and R1 131 824 respectively).
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18. Retiremant benefit liabllites (continued)

Key assumptions used

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations was as follows:

Discount rates 8.79% 8.33 %

Health care cost inflation rate 8.06 % 749 %

Net effective discount rate 0.67 % 78.00 %

Expected retirement age - females 63 63

Expected retirement age — males €3 63

Movaments in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 22220850 19731792

Current service costs 959 255 840 086

Interest cost 1815935 1 488 763

Benefits paid (854 208) (771 818)

Actuarial losses/(gains) 330788 941 025

Balance at the end of the year 24481620 22228 850

The amounts recognised Iin the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:

Current service cost 959 255 840 086

Interest cost 1815935 1488 763

Actuarial losses/(gains) 330788 941 025

Total {note 28) 3105978 3269874

The history of experienced adjustments is as follows:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Present value of defined benefit 24 481620 22229849 197317982 22877435 20526 171

obligation

Deficit 24481620 22229849 19731792 22877435 20526171

Experienced adjustments on plan 292 73¢9 (468 790) (6769737) 1948195 {214 812)

ltabilities

Other assumptions

The effact of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation is as follows:

2014 One One
percentage percentage
point Increase point

decrease

Effect on the aggregate of the currant service cost and the interest cost 378 233 (314 286)

Effect on defined benefit obligation 3119 451 {2612 048)

2013 One One
percentage percentage
point increase point

decrease

Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and the inlerest cost 318 700 (264 800)

Effect on defined benefit obligation 2935 287 (2 446 080)

The municipality expects to make a contribution of R3,224 million (2013; R2,775 million) to the defined benefit plans during the

next financial year.
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19. Non-current provisions

Provision for long service awards 11076 109 8 440 747
Total 11076 109 8 440 747

The movement in non-currant provisions are recenciled as follows:
Long-term service

Balance at beginning of year 8 440 747 9 085 346
Contributions to provision 3229 906 317 081
11670653 9372427
Transfer to current provisions (594 544) (931 680)
Balance at end of year 11 076 109 8 440 747

A long-service Award is payable after 10 years of continuous service and every 5 years thereafter to employees. The provision
is an estimate of the long-service based on historical staff turnover. No other long-service banefits are provided to employees.

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at
30 June 2014 by Mr C Weiss, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit cradit method.
At year-end, 835 (2013: 832) employees were eligible for long-service awards,

The current-service cost for the year ending 30 June 2014 is estimated to be R1 107 699, whereas the cost for the ensuing
year is estimated to be R1 244 950 (30 June 2013: R1 357 080 and R1 107 699 raspectively).

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
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19, Non-current provislons {continued)
Discount rates used 8.21% 7.56 %
Cost inflation rate 7.28 % 6.85 %
Net effective discount rate 0.86 % 0.66 %
Expected retirement age - females 63 63
Expected retirement age — males 63 63
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year 9372 427 9 765 467
Cuirent service costs 1107 699 1 357 080
Interast cost 674 101 627 110
Benefits paid (931 680) (931 680)
Actuarial losses/(gains) 1 448 106 {1667 109)
Present value of fund obligation at the 11 670 653 9 150 868
end of the year
Actuarial losses/(gains) unracognised - -
Total recognised benefit liability 11 670653 9 150 868
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:
Present value of fund obligations 11670653 9 150 868
Unfunded accrued liability 11 670 653 9 150 866
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) - -
Total benefit liability 11 670 653 9 150 BES
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:
Current service cost 1107 699 1 357 080
Interest cost 674 101 627 110
Actuarial losses/{gains) 1 448 106 {1667 109)
Total post-retirement benefit 3229 808 317 081
The history of experienced adjustments is as follows:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Present value of defined benefit 11670653 0150868 9765467 92366466 6870116 5356719
obligation
Deficit 11670653 9150868 9765467 9366466 6870116 5356719
Experienced adjustments on plan 1671011 (1664673) (991516) 870 061 755438 492 089
liabilities

In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to IAS 19 employee benefits in December 2004, the

disclosures above are determined prospectively from the 2006 reporting period.
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19. Non-current provisions {continued)

The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of long service cost inflation is as follows:

2014

Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and the interast cost
Effect on defined benefit obligation

2013

Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and the interest cost
Effect on defined benefit obligation

The municipality expects to make a contribution of R2 178 800 (2013: R1 781 800) to the
defined benefit plans during the next financial year.

20, Accumulated surplus
The Accumulated Surplus consists of:

Accumulated surplus/{deficit)

One One
percentage percentage
point increase point
decrease
172 398 (152 506)
928 853 (832 228)

One One
percentage percentage
point Increase point
decrease
165 185 {145 890)
221 558 (221 559)

2182301 444 1 824 132 694

Accumulated Surplus has been restated for various reasons indicted in Note 37 on “Correction of error”,

21. Service charges

Sale of water
Sewerage and sanitation charges

220701546 186 757 214
94 082061 87 766 966

314783607 274 524 180

22, Rental of facilities and equipment

Premises
Rental of buildings
Rental of amenities

467 651 1188 5§71
1726310 i 1o

2193 961 1530 481

Facilitles and equipment
Rental of other facilities

- 162 654

2193 961 1693135
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23. Interest earned
Bank account 10 597 167 2299 256
Short-term investments - 11 889
Correction of prior period error - (382 177)
10 597 167 1928 9768
Qutstanding receivables 3192 402 2706132
Fair value adjustment of service charges 18777013 16670105
21969415 18376 237
32566582 20305215
Total
Interest earned on financial assets, analysed by category of asset, is as follows:
Available-for-sale financial assets 10 608 243 2311 155
Held-te-maturity Investments - {382 177)
Loans and receivables 21960415 18376 237
326577658 20305215
24, Other revenue
Administration fees 54 326 56 409
Agents' commission - 72236
Building plan fees - 81176
Connection fees 1630 010 2 356 870
Reconnection fees 120 817 117 082
Restriclion fees 426 675 677 798
Septic tank clearance fees 407 133 -
Tender deposits 193 887 334 711
Water rates certificates 220 408 135090
Other revenue 3322 504 8024 891
6378760 11856 263
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25, Govermment grants and subsidies
Operational grants
Provincial equitable share 234026 000 202 522 00O
Levies replacement 50290000 46 138 000
Other grants 604 656 2 288 620
284 920 656 250 948 620
Conditional grants
National: FMG grant 1293210 1 106 802
National: DEAT grant 164 702 2071394
National: MIG grant 275304 000 289978976
National: DWAF grant 55750208 29943525
National: Local Government grants 14 036 444 840 163
Provincial: Department of Cocperative Governance and Traditional Affairs grant 22256 898 14173957
Provincial: Department of Public Works grant 883 496 -
Provincial: Department of Transport grant 1765 0198 1 640 949
Provincial: Human settlement and rural development 4 000 000 -
Development Bank of Southem Africa 828 956 280 002
Other grants 3380578 -
379663 511 340035768
664 584 167 590 984 388
Operational grants

National: equitable share

Currant year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to revenue: operating expensas

284 316 000 202 522 000
(284 316 000) (202 522 000)

Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilitles

-

In terms of the constitution, this unconditional grant is used primarily to subsidise the provision of basic services to the
community. All registered indigents receive a monthly subsidy towards the cost of basic services, which is funded from this

grant.
Conditional grants
National: finance management grant (FMG)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 44 678 -
Current year receipts 1250 000 1250 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue: operating expenses (1268762) (1031238)
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: capital expenses (24 448) (174 084)
Conditions still to be met - transfarred to liabllities 1468 44 678

The financial management grant is paid by National Treasury to municipalities to help implement the financial reforms required
by the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003. The FMG Grant also pays for the cost of the financial management

internship programme (e.g. salary costs of the financial management Interns).

National: Economic Affairs and Tourism Grant (DEAT)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 5§05 go8 2 666 491
Conditions met — transfsrred to revenue: operating expenses {164702) (1078727)
Conditions met - transferred to revenue: capital expenses - (992 666)
Conditions still to be met — transferred to liabllitles 430 396 595 098
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25. Government grants and subsidies (continued)

The European Community represented by the Department of Economic Development (Gljima KZN) awarded the grant for the
implementation of the action entitied “Strengthening the LED Enabling Environment”.

National: Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)

Current year recelpts 275304 000 289 979 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue: operating expenses (115107 659) (130 883 724)
Conditions met - transferred to revenue: capital expenses (160 196 341) (159 095 277)
Conditlons still to be met - transferred to Liabllities - (1)

The MIG grant is aimed at supplementing municipal budgets to eradicate backlogs in municipal infrastructure utilised in
providing basic services for the benefit of poor households and for the provision, rahabilitation and renewal of municipal
infrastructure.

National: Dept of Water Affalrs and Forestry Grant (DWAF)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 7 609 474 8 988 043
Current year receipts 50104303 28 585335
Conditions met - transferred to revenue: operating expenses - (3 764 605)
Conditions met - transfarred to revenue: capital expenses {53711 564) (25 199 299)
Conditlons still to be met - transferred to llabilities 4002 213 7 609 474

DWAF grants are aimed at supplementing municipal budgets to assist with the construction of water delivery infrastructure,
exacution of water service delivery and the development of an asset management plan.

National: Local Government grants

Balance unspent at beginning of year 404 487 311 379
Current year receipts 890 000 1 000 000
Interest allocated (864 487) -
Conditions met — transferred to revenue: operating expenses - {906 892)
Transfers withheld during the year {430 000) -
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities - 404 487

Various grants are paid by National Local Government to help implement the IDP, PMS, Sports Stadium and financial reform
initiatives as required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), 2003 and the Municipal Systems Act {MSA), 2000,

Provincial: Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 26271318 34094 979

Current year receipts 6000000 13752004

Conditions met - transferred to revenue: operating expenses (2 934 605) (12 402 921)
Conditions met - transferred to revenue: capital expenses (14 342706) (9172 744)
Cormection of prior period efror - conditions met -transferred to revenue: operational (732 465) -

expenses

Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilitles 14 261 542 26 271 318

Grants receivad from CoGTA are utilised to assist municipalities in building in-house capacity to perform their functions and
stabilise institutional and governance systems as required by the Municipal Structures Act. They are aimed at supplementing
municipal budgets to assist with the assessment of water service delivery mechanisms, water delivery planning and water
services technical support. Funding was aiso received to assist with the construction of the Ugu sports and leisure centre,

Provinclal: Department of Public Works Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 431 565 -

55



Ugu District Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2014 2013

25. Government grants and subsidies {continued)

Current year receipts 1 000 000 1 000 000
Interest allocated (431 565) -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue: operating expensas (883 495) {568 435)
Conditions still to be met ~ transferred to liabilitles 116 505 431 5658

This is an incentive grant from public works for the promotion of labour intensive projects within the district.

Provincial: Department of Sport and Recreation Grant

The purpose of the grant received from the Department of Sport and Recreation was to promole mass participation of a
number of selected sport codes and related activities within disadvantaged communities in conjunction with other recreation
federations, as well as {o assist with the construction of the Ugu Sports and Leisure Centre.

Provincial: Department of Transport Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 513 375 482 934
Current year receipts 2089 000 1776 000
Conditions met — transferred to revenue: operating expenses (1765 019) -
Conditions met - transfarred to revenue: capital expenses - (1 745 559)
Conditlons still to be met = transferred to liabllities 837 356 5§13 375

This funding was furnished by the KZN Department of Transport to assist with the preparation of a public transport plan as
required by the National Land Transport Transition Act, 2000, No funds were transferred to the municipality for the year under
review.

Development Bank of Southern Africa

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1068179 1743 682
Current year recaipts - 204 073
Conditions met — transfarred to revenue: operating expenses (709 256) (879 556)
Conditions met — transfarred to revenue: capital expenses {119 700) -
Conditlons still to be met - transferred to liabllities 239223 1068 179

The purpose of this grant was to assist with the development of businass plans for the seven flagship projects in the municipal
area. The objectives of the projects are to enhance rural economic davelopment and broad based community information
dissemination and empowearment.

Other Government: Industrial Development Corporation

Balance unspent at beginning of year 45 020 137 444
Interest allocated - (92 424)
Conditlons still to be met ~ transferred to liabilities 45020 45 020

The purpose of this grant was to assist with the development of business plans for the seven flagship projects in the municipal
area. The objectives of the projects are to enhance rural economic development and broad based community information
dissemination and empowerment.

26. Public contributions and donations

Reconclliation of conditional contributions
Balance unspent at beginning of year 5474 052 5474 052

Conditions still to be met = transferred to liabilities 5474 052 5474 052

The District Municipality receives funds from public donors to provide humanitary aid in various instances. These contributions
were ulilised for these purposes.
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27. Employee related costs
Salaries and Wages 140549835 149612026
Long services bonuses 998 036 -
Contribution to leave fund 2953958 37 892508
Service bonuses 11 425745 .
Contribution to UIF pensions and medical ald 40 435 364 -
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 19518112 24036726
Overtime payments 20810648 28678133
Housing benefits and allowances 1 045 326 1137 058
Defined benefit plan expense: 4 549 996 2876834
Current service cost 281 086 1 487 045
Interest cost 2490038 2115873
Net actuarial (gains)/losses recognised 1778 854 {726 084
242287 020 244 233 285
Remuneration of Sectlon 57 employees
Remuneration of municipal manager
Annual remuneration 911 446 708 207
Car, entertainment, housing, subsistence and other allowances 227778 394 758
Contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 207 088 82015
Leave encashed - 403 892
1 346 312 1588 872
The municipal manager resigned in January 2013 and the new municipal manager was appointed in March 2013,
Remuneration of deputy municipal manager
The post became vacant in December 2011, The position has not been filled yet at 30 June 2013.
Remuneratlon of chief finance officer
Annual remuneration 5§13 083 368 576
Car, entertainment, housing, subsistence and other allowances 214 332 441 584
Contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 56 689 63 422
Leave encashed 238 718 -
1022822 873 582

The General Manager: Financial Services resigned on 31 March 2012. The Manager: Budget Office assumed the actling

position from April 2012 to August 2012 and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer on 1 Septembar 2012,

Corporate and human resources (corporate services)

Annual remuneration 570 892 409 340
Car, entertainment, housing, subsistence and other allowances 520 822 490 745
Confributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 12199 11273
Leave encashed - 141 853
1103913 1053 211
Remuneration of the General Manager: Infrastructure and Economic Davelopment
Annual remuneration 760 636 658 728
Car, entertainment, housing, subsistence and other allowances 276 077 229 315
Contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 11 580 11 165
Leave encashed - 118 87¢
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27. Employee related costs (continued)
1048 293 1018 087
Remuneration of the General Manager: Water Services
Annual remuneration 464 872 613 449
Car, entertainment, housing, subsistence and other allowances 174 405 203 980
Contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 16 128 9363
Leave encashed 58 991 129 426
714 397 956 218
Remuneration of the General Manager: Operations
The post became vacant in December 2011. The position has not been filled yat at 30 June 2013.
Remuneration of the Senlor Manager: Strategy and Shared Services
Annual remuneration 592 205 547 984
Car, entertainment, housing, subsistence and other allowances 193 257 180 361
Contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 9258 8635
794 720 736 950
The following compensation was payable to key management personnel as at 30 June:
Staff leave benefits:-
Municipal manager 50 833 28 968
Chief financial officer 85 595 44 589
General manager: corporate services 152 780 28 BOO
General manager: infrastructure & economic development 152 780 34375
General manager; water services 171 213 12 841
Special advisor - 106 998
613 201 256 591
28, Remuneration of counciliors / board members
Mayor 343056 343 056
Deputy mayor 261 568 261 564
Executive committee members 1 508 267 1473 300
Speaker - 256918
Councillors / board members 1175 230 1131961
Company contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 479 129 460 096
Medical aid 171 668 153 944
Pension fund 240 020 239254
Skills development levy 87 441 66 896
Other allowances (cellular phones, housing, transport, etc.) 3 757 912 3 919 640
Housing subsidy 1411268 3 919 640
Telephone allowance 297 286 -
Travelling allowance 2 049 358 -
Chief whip 258 918 -
7 784 080 7 848 535
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28. Remuneration of councillors / board members (continued)

In-kind benefits

The Councillors accupying the positions of Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Speaker and Executive Committee members of the
municipality serve in a full-time capacity. They are provided with office accommodation and secretarial support at the expense
of the municipality in order to enable them to perform their official duties.

Councillors may utilise official council transportation when engaged in official dutias.

The follewing additional personal support is provided by the municipality;

(I The Mayor has one full-ime bodyguard and one full-lime driver.

(ii)The Deputy Mayor has one fuil-time aide, fullfilling various personal duties.

{iii) The Speaker has one full-time driver.

29. Depreciation and amortisation

Property plant and equipment 64 354996 50 041 420
Amortisation intangible assets 3073 264 2712905

67428260 52754325

30. Impairment loss

Property plant and equipment - (632 883)
Inventory - (1 166 858)
Trade and other receivables (4 664 957) -

(4664 957) (1799 741)

Reversal
Consumer debtors - 25808588
Total impairment losses (recognised) reversed {4 664 957) 24 008 857

31. Finance costs

Trade payables 661 744 788 184
Loans and payables at amortised cost 15321376 16171745

15883120 16 959 929

32. Bulk purchases

Water 52126622 34650 454

Bulk purchases are the cost of commodities not generated by the municipality, which the municipality distributes in the
municipal area for resale to the consumers. Bulk water Is purchased from the Umgeni Water Board and eThekwini Municipality.
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33. Contracted services

Other Contractors 3578 3334588
Cleaning services 1 668 658 2 206 755
Professional services:

—Chemistry 4 044 040 1327 430
- Dam safety 15 500 1714419
- Engineering services 1575 458 197 671
« Other professional services 1820 589 -
Security services:

= Alarm monitoring 4470 8789
- Cash banking 147 097 152019
- General security 10 100 000 8999373
Sewerage purification services - 189 810
Total 19579390 18 131 854

34. Grants and subsidies

Community projects 15 831 657 132 841 081
Low income subsidy 55568 124 49 829 466
Other grants and subsidies paid 253000 17 768 051
Other 47 337 769 -
Total 118990 550 200 438 598

Conditional grants paid is in respect of projects undertaken by municipalities within the municipality's area of jurisdiction and
funded by Ugu District Municipality,

Community projects consist primarily of ventilated pit latrines constructed for communities that have no access 1o sanitation
services, This project is accelerated to deal swiftly with the municipality’s sanitation backlog programme as funded through the
Municipal Infrastructure Grant.

The low income subsidy is in respect of providing basic service levels to indigent households,
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35. General expenses

Accommodation, seminars and travelling 366 387 350 280
Advertising 167 631 220 878
Audit fees 2111074 2341651
Bad debt written off 6053 415 -
Catering expenses 540 887 655 497
Cellphones, internet and telephones 2772597 3221 801
Cleaning materials and chemicals 259 421 237 249
Commission paid 1147 364 1011748
Consultant information technology support 90 343 131 800
Consumables 152 659 214 454
Electricity 45719017 42301 197
Entertainment - 11 606
Events and programmes 1195 485 2 548 685
Fuel and oll 10 198 419 9819 823
Gardening services 7568 642 364 990
Insurance general 2776 679 60 660
Kwanaloga games - 1736 585
Kwanaloga subscriptions 4157 174 2238687
Legal expenses 3250238 831 417
Licences 3767 €05 1774 080
Loose/small tools 297 333 264 970
Marketing expenses 58 067 214 107
Materials 5716 605 6917 082
Postage 1622 345 1 440 409
Printing and stationery 681 767 430 920
Property transfers 895 551 -
Public participation 3142416 174174
Refrashments 135 585 678 487
Sports and leisure centre 2013144 3733553
Staff training 1615244 984 114
Subscriptions 2496 14 633
Subsistence - 1073
Training cost 14 453 105 435
Transport costs 11 547 647 6 704 808
Uniforms and protective clothing 691 679 679 311
Vehicle tracking 1 035 830 289 492
Workmen's compensation insurance 1324610 1 435 909
Other General Expenses 213 9186 1097 741

116495725 95239 306

36.1 Material losses
Distribution losses:
Water losses 20333005 24584019

The amounts disclosed above for water losses are in respect of production costs incurred in the extraction, purification, storage
and distribution of water by the municipality and not directly attributable to a specific service or class of expense (See note 2),

36. Changes In accounting policy

The municipality adopted no Accounting Standards for the first time during the financial year 2013/14 in order to comply with
the basis of preparation of the Annual Financial Statements as disclosed in Accounting Policy 1.

37. Correction of Error

Corrections were made during the previous financial years, Details of the corections are described below:
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37, Correctlon of Error {continuad)

Reclassiflcation of Accumulated Surplus

The prior year figures of Accumulated Surplus has been restated to correctly disclose the monies held by the municipality in

terms of the disclosure notes indicated below,

Restatement of prior year balance

Property plant and aquipment Year
Reported Closing 201112
Correction of prior year error 201112

Land &
Buildings

Moveables Community Infrustructure Total

493 346431 45520102 105432029 1418319822 2062 819 496
(10107 012) 3484 486 86109 (433652) (6768 957)

483 239419 49004 588 105518138 1417 886 170 2 058 050 539
(361 872) (8123 032) (99601) (25728627) (34111918)

Restated Opening balance 201213
Correction of prior year error 2012113
Restated Closing balance 201213

482 877 547 408061 556 105 418 537 1 392 157 543 2 021 938 620

The prior year errors relate to the Property plant and equipment ommitted from the fixed asset register in their respective
periods.These items were identified through detail reconciliaition of fixed asset registers in the current year, The municipality is
confident that it has perfomed enough and sufficient procedures to account for all assets of the municipality.

Intangibles Year Software Servitudes Total
Reported Closing 201213 8052 181 2533242 10786636
Carrection of prior year error 201112 (289 007) 26 400 (61 495)
Correction of prior year error 201213 (107 792) 19730 113151
Restated Closing balance 2012113 7 655 382 2579372 10838292

The prior year errors relates to the recalculation of depreciation and the missallocation of transactions.

VAT 201213

Reported Closing 21 358 960
Comection of error 1881 498
Restated Closing Balance 23 240 458

This correction of prior year error relates to overstatment of VAT recievable. The error include output vat that was under
declared in the previous year, Interest and penalties levied against late payments. This error has been resolved and

communicated to SARS,

Inventory 201213
Amount reported 8348 324
Corraction of error {1 499 545)
Restated Amount 6 848 789

The correction of error relates to the incorrect rate used to calculate the stock on hand. Stock was not measured at lower of

cost and net reliasible value.

Inter Company 2012/2013
Amount reported 8643 941
Correction of error (86 447)
Restated Amount 8 557 494

This correction of error relates to the inter compay balance that was not cleared in the prior year.
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38. Cash gonerated from operations

Surplus

AdJustments for;

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest income

Finance costs

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
Losses / (Gains) on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
Expenditure incurred from retirement benefit liabilities
Contribution to Retirement Benefit Liabilities

Other Property, Plant and Equipment movement
Contribution to Provisions — Current

Contribution to Provisions — Non-current

Expenditure incurred from Provisions = Currant
Cormrection of prior year errors

Contribution to impairment provision

Leave contribution

Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Receivables from exchange transactions

Other receivables from non-axchange transactions
Current portion of long-term receivables

Operating lease raceivables

Payables

VAT

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Consumer deposits

Operating lease liabilities

358 168 750 241 657 185

67 428 260
(32 566 581)
15 983 120
4 664 057

31070
(854 208)
3105 978
7947 930
3229 906
(931 680)

3020980

{1 130 626)
(31 059 818)
{1211 700)
62 888

19 382

24 621 003
8212 405
(3175 330)
(345 516)
(25 391)

52 754 325

632 883

3 269 874
(754 068)

6051419
(683 576)

317 081
(771 816)
(100 428)
(25 808 598)

611 601
(33 074 952)
16 040 743

(37 956)

(43 785)

(20 015 502)

(11 450 383)
4311511
588 984
34011

425195779 224 528 513

39. Non-Cash Investing and Financing Transactions

The municipality did not enter into any Non-cash Investing and Financing Transactions during the 2013/14 financial year,

63



Ugu District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2014 2013
40. Flnancing facllities
Unsecurad Bank Overdraft Facility, reviewed annually and payable at call: 1 900 000 5 000 000
1 900 000 5 000 000
Unsecurad Guarantee Facility, reviewed annually and payable monthly: - -
-Amount used - -
-Amount unused 3 100 000 -
3100 000 =
Unsecured Fleet Card Facllity, reviewed annually and payable monthly: 1 500 000 2 500 000
1 500 000 2 500 000
Unsecured Vehicle and Asset Finance Facllity, reviewed annually: - 7 294 544
= Amount used - 2705 456
- Amount unused 12 500 000 -
12500000 10 000 000
Unsecured Automated Clearing Bureau Facility: - -
-Amount used 2000 000 -
2000 000 5
Secured Bank Loan Facilities with various maturity dates through to 2011 and which 85433000 85433000
may be extended by mutual agreement:
85433000 85433000
41. Unauthorised expenditure
Reconcillation of Unauthorised Expenditure:
Unauthorised Expenditure current year 3493 027 8125720
Unauthorised Expenditure awaiting authorisation 3 493 027 8125720
Incident
Amount Amount
Budgeted amounts exceeded:
Disclplinary steps/ criminal proceedings:
To be condoned by Executive Committee
Infrastructure & economic development - 7038 102
Water 3493 027 -
Environmental protection - 1087 618
Total expenditure 3493 027 8125720
42. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure:
Opening balance 2028 201 1218 632
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure during the current year 661 744 809 658
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement 2690 035 2028 291
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42. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure (continued)

Incident

Interest on late payments — R661 744 (2013;

RB0Y 659)

Disciplinary steps/ criminal proceedings: -

A report will be adopted by the executive

committee, condoning the "fruitless and wasteful

expenditure” for the current year,

Disciplinary action is in progress for the prior

year's fruitless and wasteful expenditure

43. Additional disclosure In terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

Contributions to organised local government

Current year subscription / fee 2118 324 22386688

Amount pald - current year (2118 324) (2 238688)

Audit fees

Opening balance 204 159 269 143

Current year subscription / fee 2059 806 2372713

Amount paid - current year - (2 168 554)

Amount paid - previous years (204 159) (269 143)
2059 806 204 1589

The balance unpaid represents the audit fee for pre-audit of and planning the audit for the 2013/14 financial year and is

payable by 31 July 2014,
PAYE, Skills Development Levy and UIF

Current year subscription / fee 35783740 35356418

Amount paid - current year (35783 740) (35 356 418)
Pension and Medical Aid Deductions

Current year subscription / fee 51160355 44 544 336

Amount paid - current year (51 160 355) (44 544 336)

65



Ugu District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2014 2013

43, Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act {continued)
Councillors’ arrear consumer accounts

The following councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2014;

30 June 2013 Qutstanding OQutstanding Total
less than 90 more than 90 R
days days
R R

Gumede ST 106 339 445
Dzingwa TN 1623 726 2349
Ntanza VL 9595 4 884 14 479
Mavundla IM 97 - 97
Gumede NH 2969 7 246 10215
Chiliza MA & ZP - 283 2683
Gumede ST &PY 2169 565 2734
Nair Y 2889 - 2 889
Chiliza MA & ZP 180 - 180
19 628 14 043 36T

Value
30 June 2014 Unaccounted water losses 20333 005
30 June 2013 Unaccounted water losses 24 534 019

Water losses occur due to inter alia, leakages, the tampering of meters, the incorrect ratios used on bulk meters, faulty meters
and illegal water connections. The problem with tampered meters and illegal connections is an ongoing process, with regular
action being taken against defaulters. Faulty meters and leakages are replaced/ repaired as soon as they are reported.

A five-year strategic non-revenue water reduction plan was adopted and implemented by the Executive Committee in May
2008, The below-mentioned technical information was derived at as part of the implementation plan:

Volumes in Ml/ysar:

System input volume 40 458 38 621
Billed authorised consumption 31 464 26716
Unbilled authorised consumption 838 492
Apparent losses 1679 2348
Real losses 6477 9 065
Estimated non-revenue water 8994 11 805
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44, Deviation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, the procurement process
Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure:
Opening balance 61101377 17603725
Irregular Expenditure current year 95211842 67 558332
Condoned or written off by Council - (24 060 €81)
To be recovered - contingent asset (4 714 038) -
Irregular Expenditure awalting condonement 151599181 61101376
Incldent Disciplinary Steps / Criminal 2014 2013
Proceedings

Expenditure contrary to the provisions of Regulation 44 of All Irregular Expenditure 13692176 12627 401
the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations as incurred has been referred to
describaed in Note xx Internal Audit for investigation.

MPAC will advise Council on

the recoverability of the

expenditure
Expenditure according to the provisions of Regulation 36 of Al Irregular Expenditure 16 904 377 £ 968 655
the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations as incurred has been referred to
described in Note xx Internal Audit for investigation,

MPAC will advise Council on

the recoverability of the

expenditure
Irregular expenditure incurred contrary to the Supply Chain All rregular Expenditure 64615290 48962 276
Managament Policy incurred has been referred to

Internal Audit for investigation,

MPAC will advise Council on

the recoverability of the

expenditure

- - 95211842 67658332

Xxx Deviation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, the Procurement Processes

in terms of section 36(2) of the Supply Chain Management Policy approved by Council it is stipulated that bids where the
formal procurement processes could not be followed, must be noted in the financial statements,

The majority of the items mentioned resulted from flood damage that had to be addressed at short notice and the response
times did not allow for the complete procurement process to be followed. The balance of items was due to emergency

circumstances and economic benefits for the municipality.

Deviations from the tender stipulations in terms of the municipality's Supply Chain Management Policy were presented to the

Executive Committee, which condoned the various cases.

Department

Water services
Supply of toilets at Umzinlo informal settlements

Water services
Supply of chemicals for water purification

Date Successful Reason
tenderer
September  Sanitech Impractical to
2013 follow SCM
process
Seplember Sud-Chemie Extension of
2013 contract

Amount

264 413

693 000
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44, Deviation from, and ratificatlon of minor breaches of, the procurement process (continued)
Water services September Ncp Extension of 500 000
Supply of chemicals for water purification 2013 Chlorchem  contract
Water services EFT000167 Bates Delta Impractica! to 272 958
Service plan on fleet already purchased from dealer using scm follow SCM
process process
Water services October Harappa Extension of 152 487
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2013 Trading contract
Water services October Mcalafuze  Extension of 87 996
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2013 Development contract

cc
Water Services October Wasteng Extension of 140 643
Hire of water tankers to deliver water o areas without access 2013 (Pty)Ltd contract
Water services Octaber Isifiso Extension of 71963
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2013 sikaNdiovu  contract

Contraction
Water services October VT Moodley Extension of 67 767
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2013 contract
Water services October Simuma Extension of 47 387
Hire of water tankers to deliver water o areas without access 2013 Transport  contract
Water services October Dynamo- Extension of 66 022
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2013 Duck Trading contract
Water services October African Tide Extension of 30 816
Extension of water tankers,contract expired in April 2013 (Ugu- 2013 Trading contract
07-1090-2011)t
Water Services October Ityatyambo  Extension of 120 936
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2013 Trading contract
Flest section October Bates Defta Agents 190 000
Repairs and Mainteinance to all Isuzu vshicles, light and vehicles 2013
Corporate services October Umqondo  Accredited 169 000
Provision of Councillor Accredited Training 2013 Tradingcc  Supplier
Water Services October Ngomsolethu Extension of 110 566
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2013 Construction contract

cc
Fleet Section October Brian Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Nissan Light and Heavy Vehicles 2013 Thompson
Water services November  Umpisi Emergency 873 240
Appointment as a consultant on a Umzinto repair of access road 2013 Engineers  Disaster
to Pumpstation after flood disaster Project
IED November Distinctive  Additional 24 510
Additional costs for changes made on the material for GDS 2013 choice 964 ccspecifications
Summit
Treasury November Lasercom  Extension of 364 800
Printing of customer statements 2013 contract
Treasury November CC Printing Service 14 883
Printing of salary cheques 2013 Solutions available from

sole provider
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44, Deviation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, the procurement process (continued)
Water services December Brian Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Nissan Light and Heavy Vehicles 2013 Thompson
Water services December Bates Delta Agenis 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Nissan Light and Heavy Vehicles 2013
Corporate Services December  Jireh Extension of 127 361
Replacement and network management at different Ugu sites 2013 Technologies contract
Water services December Bates Delta Agents 2140 863
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles 2013
Water services December Bosch Emergency 171 000
Consultant on emergency disaster relief project 2013 Stemele PTY Disaster
LTD Project

Fleet section December Haliway Agents 40 000
Repairs and Maintanance of Toyota Light and Heavy Vehicles 2013 Toyota
Fleet section December Bates Delta Agents 194 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles 2013
Fleat section December Halfway Agents 40 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles 2013 Toyota
Corporate services January VHB Projects Extension of 2700 000
Consultant on disaster management centre 2014 contract
Water services January Town Around Emergency 1124817
Contractor appointed on disaster emergency relief project 2014 Civils Disaster

Project
Fleet section January Union Motors Agents 100 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Fuso and Mitsubishi Trucks 2014
Water services January PGA Emergency 1000 550
Consultant on emergency work during December 2012 peak 2014 Consulting cc work done
season during the

peak season
Water services January Harappapa Extension of 17 217
Hire of watar tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2014 Trading contract
Water Services January African Tide Extension of 18 418
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2014 Trading coniract
Water services January Gilili BusinessExtension of 15 414
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access 2014 Trading contract
Water services February Waco Africa Extension of 273 000
Supply of toilets at Umzinto informal setilements 2014 (Pty) Ltd contract
Office of the Municipal Manager February Nando's Port Special 8535
Catering to special programmes 2014 Shepstone  Programme
Water services February Bates Delta Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles 2014
Water services February Brian Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles 2014 Thompson
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44, Deviation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, the procurement process {continued)
Water services February Brian Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles 2014 Thompson
Corporate Services February Datapro (Pty) Extension of 240 445
IProvision of internet and wireless network services 2014 Ltd contract
Walter services March Bates Delta Urgent 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles 2014
Water services March Union Motors Agents 50 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Fuso and Mitsubishi Trucks 2014
Water services March Bates Delta Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles 2014
Water services April2014  Brian Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Nissan Light and Heavy Vehicles Thompson
Sanitation April 2014 Ncp Extension of 570 000
Supply of chemicals for water purification Chlorchem  contract
Sanitation May 2014  Clariant Extension of 684 000
Supply and delivery of bulk chemicals Southern contract

Africa
Water services May 2014  Harappa Extension of 58 559
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access Trading contract
Water services May 2014  ltyatyambo Extension of 38214
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access Trading contract
Fleet section May 2014  Brian Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Nissan Light and Heavy Vehicles Thompson
Fleot section May 2014  Bates Delta Agents 190 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles
Fleet section June 2014 Bates Delta Agents 172 687
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles
Fleet section June 2014 Wasteng Pty Extension of 175 269
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access Ltd contract
Fleet section June 2014  ltyalyambo  Extension of 117 114
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access Trading contract
Fleet section June 2014  Harappa Extension of 117 114
Hire of water tankers to deliver water to areas without access Trading contract
Fleet section June 2014  African Tide Extension of 117 114
Hire of water tankers 1o deliver water to areas without access Trading contract
Fleet ssction June 2014  Bates Delta Agents 180 000
Repairs and Maintenance of Isuzu Light and Heavy Vehicles
Water services June 2014  African Tide Extension of 59 292

Hire of water tankers 10 deliver water to areas without access

Trading contract
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44, Devlation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, the procursment process (continued)

Furthermore, the municipality has made the following awards to persons in service of Govemment institutions

contrary to the provisions of paragraphs 44 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations:

Company Name

Asipheyena Catering and Trading Enterprise

Besafe Security Services

Camlulo Trading

Jays Studio

Lwandiliso Construction & Projects CC

Mafuthe Ngusha Trading

Mpheme Trading

Nhianhla & Thobi Trading CC

Sthembu Buntu General Trading

Yolwayo Construction

African Tide Trading CC

Margate Hotel (J & K Hotel)

MCB Projects CC

Sihloniphe Business Trading Primary CO - OP LTD

Sihloniphe Business Trading Primary CO - OP LTD

i hubalam Trading

Related Municipal
Parson Capacity
Gloria KZN
Nondumiso  Education
Tintswalo KZN Rural
Hiulani Dev & Land
Reform
Hombakazi  Statistics
South Africa
Malamela EC
Zukile Agriculture &
Land Affairs
Bulelani EC Education
& Culture
Dumisile KZN
Education
Goodness 2N
Zibuyile Education
Mthunzi Andile KZN
Pearson Education
Ruth Lulama EC
Agriculture &
Land Affairs
Laura KZN
Education
AT Xaba Eskom
Holdings Ltd
PJ Venter Stellenbosch
Local
Municipality
B Geyer Transnet
Limited
NM South African
Mkhanyawo Police
Service
AN Mhlongo KZN
Education
RLDzengwa EC:Roads &
Public Works

362 502

63 900

2072658

2475

2475

9 877 508

Purchases Purchases
for the Year for the Year

1758

624 684

3982123

1 506 461

14 100

1141 807

120 686

558 188

395 921

22 500

708 076

134 220

2125

2118 244
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44. Deviation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, the procurement process (continued)

Trentyre PTY LTD NP Mona Komatiland 136 397 341 944
Forests

Dumani Catering & general Services S Moodley KZN 48 800 103 820
Education

Isifiso Sika Ndlovu Contracting And Trading CC NP MSANI KZN 848 107 575 424
Education

Mahlafuna Distributors D. NGCOBO KZN 277 355 268 322
Education

13692175 12627 400

45. Commitments for expenditure
Capital commitments

Approved and contracted for:-
s Infrastructure 256 360 749 321 937 680
s  Other 69958052 21 248 6506
326318 801 343 186 286
Approved but not yet contracted for:-
s Infrastructure 68294 324 193 001 041
58 294 324 193 001 041
Total capital commitments
This expenditure will be financed from:
Govemment grants 327999963 515807 251
Own resources 56613 163 20380 076
384 613126 536 187 327
Lease commitments
Finance lease liabilities and non-cancellable operating lease commitments are disclosed in Note 4 and 18
Other commitments
Commitments for expenditure:
- within one year - 1 565 659
- Thereafter - 1710053
- 3275712
48, Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financlal instruments
2014
Financlal assets
In accordance with GRAP 104.13 the financial assets of the municipality are classified as follows:
Atfair value At amortised Total
cost
Long-term loans
Relocation loans - 28 442 28 442
Sundry loans - 3 600 3 600
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Financial instruments disclosure (continued)
Reacelvables from exchange transactions
Sewerage - 28276840 28 276 840
Water - 77853144 77853144
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions - 24550458 24 550 459
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Payments made in advance - 1920 995 1920 9985
Government subsidy claims - 1763703 1763703
Insurance claims - 122 367 122 367
Municipal entities - 66 846 66 846
Sundry deposits - 893 075 893 075
Sundry debtors - 15128310 15128 310
Cash and cash equivalents
Call deposils 7 580 313 - 7 560 313
Notice deposits - 732 428 732428
Bank balances 152 374 235 - 152 374 235
Cash floats and advances 4910 - 4410
Current portion of long-term receivables
Relocation loans - 28 442 28 442
Sundry loans - 3 600 3600
159939458 151372251 311311709
Financial labilities
In accordance with GRAP 104.13 the financial liabilities of the municipality are classified as follows:
At fair value At amortised Total
cost
Long-term racelvables
Annuity loans - 365733784 365733784
Other loans - 3063 785 3063 785
Payables
Bank overdraft
Bank overdraft 3281879 - 3281879
Current portion of long term liabilities
Annuity loans - 3361417 3361417
3281879 3721589686 375 440 865
2013
Financla) assets
At fair value At amortised Total
cost
Long-term receivables
Relocation loans - 62 799 62 799
Sundry loans - 7 493 7 493
Receivables from exchange transactions
Sewerage - 23821201 23821201
Water - 60035920 60035920
Water rate - 13307081 13 307 081
Other trade - 4372 345 4372345
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Payments made in advance - 63 406 63 406
Government subsidy claims - 150 503 150 503
Insurance claims - 122 367 122 367
Municipal entities - 50 979 50 979
Sundry deposits - 1003 908 1003 908
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Financial instruments disclosure (continued)

Sundry debtors - 7252778 7252778
Cash and cash equivalents
Call deposits 12012570 - 12012570
Notice deposits - 708 687 708 687
Bank balances £9026 230 - 59026230
Cash floats and advances 4910 - 4910
Current portion of long term receivables
Relocation loans - 47 824 47 824
Sundry loans - 3600 3600

71043710 111010891 182054 601
Financlal liabilities
In accordance with GRAP 104.13 the financiallLiabilities of the municipality are classified as follows:

Atfair value At amortised Total
cost
Long-term liabilities
Annuity loans - 181806910 181 806 910
Finance lease liabilities - 4 639 625 4 639 625
Payables
Trade creditors - 18508575 1B 506 575
Projects - 4 410 025 4 410025
Retentions - 35579377 35579377
Staff bonuses . 9248 785 9248785
Staff leave accrued - 15268269 15268 299
Other creditors - 45888301 45889301
Bank overdraft
Bank overdraft 3 185 209 - 3 195 209
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Annuity loans - 14610464 14610464
Finance lease liabilities - 2299 315 2299 315
3195209 332258676 335453885
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47. Financial Instruments
Falr value

The following methods and assumplions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument for which it is
practical to estimate such value:

Cash and short-term investments:
The carrying amount approximates the fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.
Long-term investments

The fair value of some Investments are estimated based on quoted market prices of those or similar investments. Unlisted
equity investments are estimated using the discounted cash flow method.

Loan receivables/payables

Interest-bearing borrowings and receivables are generally at interest rates in line with those currently available in the market on
2 floating-rate basis, and therefore the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities closely approximates their carrying
values. Fixed interest-rate instruments are fair vajued based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date,

Trade and other recelvables/payables

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of trade and other receivables racorded at
amortised cost in the annual financial statements approximate their fair values. The fair value of trade receivables were
determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into between the municipality and other
parties as well as the current payment ratios of the municipality’s debtors.

Other financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding Derivative Instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for simitar instruments.

Long-term liabilities

Management considers the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
annual financial statements to approximate their fair values on 30 June 2013, as a result of the short-tarm maturity of these
assets and liabilities,

No financial instruments of the municipality were reclassified during the year.
Assumptions used in determining fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period by the level of fair-value
hierarchy as required by IFRS 7. The different levels are based on the extent to which quoted prices are used in the calculation
of the fair value of the financial instruments. The levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Fair values are based on quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Fair values are calculated using valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly {i.e. as prices) or
indirectly {i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in active markets for
similar instruments, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considerad less than active, or other
valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable fror market data.

Levi| 3 Fair values are based on valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instrumants where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument's valuation. Also, this category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices
for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between
the instruments.
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47. Financial instruments (continued)
Capital risk management

The municipality manages ils capital to ensure that the municipality will be able to continue as a going concem
while delivering sustainable services to consumers through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
municipality’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2011.

The capital structure of the municipality consists of debt, which includes the Leng-term Liabilities disclosed in
note 7, bank, cash and cash equivalents and equity, comprising accumulated Surplus as disclosed in Note 3
and the statement of changes in net assets.

Gearing ratlo
In terms of the municipality's five year financial plan, financial benchmarks, year-on-year in respect of the debt-to-equity ratio, is

reflacted at 100%, decreasing to 90%. This ratio is as a result of the developmental challenges faced by the municipality. Some
of the borrowings are below market related rates.
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47. Financial Instruments {(continued)

The gearing ratlo at the year-end was as follows: 2014 2013

R R
Debt 184 071 569 203 356 314
Cash and cash equivalents {152 369 325) (59 021 320)
Net Debt 31702244 144334 994
Equity 2212 030 578 1 872 034 085
Net debt to equity ratio 143 % T %

Debt is defined as long- and short-term Liabilities, as detailed in Note 18.

Equity includes all funds and reserves of the municipality, disclosed as net assets in the statement of
financial performance and net debt as described above.

Financial risk management objectives

The accounting officer has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the municipality’s risk management
framework. The municipality's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
municipality, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

Due to the largely non-trading nature of activities and the way in which they are financed, municipalities are not exposed to the
degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing
risks that would be typical of listed companies to which the I1ASs mainly apply. Generally, financial assets and liabilities are
generated by day-to-day operational activities and are not held to manage the risks facing the municipality in undertaking its
activities.

The directorate: Treasury maonitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal policies and
procedures, These risks Include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity. CompHance with policies and procedures is reviewad
by the internal auditors on a continuous basis, and annually by external auditors. The municipality does not enter into or trade
financial instruments for speculative purposes,

Internal audit, responsible for initiating a control framework and menitoring and responding to potential risk, reports quarterly to
the municipality's audit committee, an independent body that monitors the effectiveness of the intarnal audit function.

Further quantitative disclosures ars included throughout these annual financial statements.
Significant risks

Itis the policy of the municipality to disclose information that enables the user of its annual financial
statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the
municipality is exposed on the reporting date,

The municipality has exposure to the following risks from its operations in financial instruments:

e Credit risk;
*  Liquidity risk; and
. Market risk.

Risks and exposures are disclosed as follows:
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect

the municipalily's income or the value of its holdings in Financial Instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable paramelers, while optimising the return,
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47. Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financia! loss to the municipality if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations and arises principally from the municipality’s receivables from customers and investment securities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the municipality will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settied by delivering cash or another financial asset. The municipality's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficlent liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the municipality’s reputation.

Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in relation to cash
flow requirements. Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all contractual payments are met on a timeous basis and, if
required, additional new arrangements are established at competitive rates to ensure that cash fiow requirements are met.

A maturity analysis for financial liabilities (where applicable) that shows the remaining undiscounted contractual maturities is
disclosed in Notes 49.8 and 49.9 to the annual financial statements.
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47. Financial Instruments {continued)
Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibllity for liquidity risk management rests with the council, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the municipality’s short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The municipality manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities. Included in Note 42 is a listing of additional undrawn facilities that the municipality has at its

disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.
Liquldity and Interest risk tables

The municipality ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand or access to facilities to meet expected operational expenses
through the use of cash flow forecasts. The following tables detail the municipality's remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earflest date on which the municipality can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

30 June 2014 6 Months 6-12 1-2 2-5 More than Total
or less Months Years Years 5 Years
R R R R R
Non-interest bearing 140 377 050 - - - - 140377 050
Variable interest rate instruments 3281879 - - - - 3281879
Fixed interest rate instruments 13014267 13789267 27578533 88053182 176 338 319 318773 568

156 673196 13789 267 27 578 533

88053182 176 338 319 482432 497

30 June 2013 6 Months 6-12
or less Months
. R R
Non-interest bearing 128 902 362
Variable interest rate instruments 3195209

Fixed interest rate instruments

13341575 14022221

More than
§ Years
R

Total

128 902 362
3195 209

27 855736 86821869 148 414 872 290456 273

The following table details the municipality's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The tables below have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interast that will be earmed on
those assets except where the municipality anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different period.

30 June 2014 6 Months 6-12 1-2 2-5 More than Total
or less Months Years Years 5 Years
R R R R R
Non-interest bearing 224 435 449 - - - 224 435 448
Variable interest rate instruments 160 666 976 - - - 160 666 976
Fixed interest rate instruments 732 428 - - - - 732 428
385 834 853 - . . -~ 385834 853
30 June 2013 6 Months 6-12 1-2 2-5 More than Total
or less Months Years Years 5 Years
R R R R R
Non-interest bearing 110 307 114 - - - - 110307 114
Vartable interest rate instruments 71 038 800 - - - - 71038 800
Fixed interest rate instruments 708 687 - - - - 708 687
30 June 2014 6 Months 6-12 1-2 2-5 More than Total
or less Months Years Years 5 Years
R R R R R
Non-interest bearing 141 538 885 - - - - 141538 885
Variable interest rate instruments 71 038 800 - - - - 71038800
Fixed Interest rate instruments 708 687 - - - - 708 687
213 286 372 - - - - 213286 372
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47. Financlal Instruments (continued)
30 June 2013 © Months 6-12 1=2 2-5 More than Total

orless Months Years Years 5 Years

R R R R R

Non-interest bearing 111 029 446 - - - 111 029 446
Variable interest rate nstruments 77 321980 - - - 77321980
Fixed Interest Rate Instruments 751 194 - - - 751 194

The municipality has access to financing facilities, the total unused amount which is R9,268 million at the balance sheet date,
The municipality expects to meet its other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets. The
municipality expects to maintain current debt to equity ratic, within 20-25% limits increasing it to 25%. This will be achieved
through the issue of new debt and the increased use of securad bank loan facilities.

Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

In accordance with IAS 32.67(a) and (b} the following tables indicate the average effective interast rates of Income eaming
Financial Assets and Interest-bearing Financial Liabilities at the reporting date and the periods in which they mature or, if

earlier, raprice;
30 June 2014 6 Months 6-12 1=-2 2-5 More than Total

or less Months Years Years 5 Years

R R R R

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS
Held-to-maturity Investments 708 687 - - - - 708 687
Notice deposits 708 687 - - - - 708 687
Secured bank facilities
VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS
Call deposits 8§ 292 741 - - - - 8292741
Bank balances and cash 152 374 235 - - - - 152 374 235
Total variable rate instruments . - - - - -
30 June 2013 6 Months 6-12 1-2 2-5 More than Total

or less Months Years Years 5 Years

R R R R

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS
Held-to-maturity Investments - - - - - 708 687
Notice Deposits - - - - - 708 687
Secured Bank Facilities
Unsecured Bank Facilities (196 417 375) - - (350 803) (16 676 442)(194 950 517)
ABSA (82 917 262) - - - - {90253 471)
DBSA - - - (350 803) - {350 803)
DBSA (2 256 232) - - - (2969 533) -
DBSA {18 936 108) - - - - {20 566 435)
DBSA {22 119 542) - - - - (23 596 682)
DBSA {58 279 886) - - - - (60533 930)
DBSA (Ex Hibiscus Coast) {11 305 961) - - - {12688 271) -
DBSA (Ex Umdoni) {469 959) - - - (658 112) -
DBSA (Ex Umuziwabantu) {132 425) - - - {360 527) -
Total fixed rate instruments (195 708 688) - - {350 803) (16 676 442)(194 950 517)
VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS
Call deposits 12012570 3119372 - - -

Bank balances and cash

59026230 51518575

Total variable rate instruments

71038 800 54637 947
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47. Financlal instruments (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
municipality. The municipality has a sound credit control and debt collection policy and obtains collateral, where appropriate, as
a means of miligating the risk of financial loss from defaults, The municipality uses other publicly available financial information
and its own trading records to assess its major customars. The municipality’s exposure of its counterparties are monitorad
regularly,

Potential cancentrations of credit rate risk consist mainly of fixed deposit investments, long-term debtors, consumer debtors,
other debtors, short-term investment deposits and bank and cash balances.

Investments/bank, cash and cash equivalents

The municipality limits its counterparty exposures from its short-term investments (financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired) by only dealing with well-established financial institutions short term credit rating of BBB and long-tarm credit rating of
AA- and higher at an Intemational accredited credit rating agency. The municipality’s exposure is continuously monitored and
the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst different types of approved investments and institutions, in
accordance with it's investment policy. Consequently, the municipality is not expased to any significant credit risk.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other raceivables are amounts owed by consumers and are presented net of impairment losses. The municipality
has a credit risk policy in place and the exposure to credit risk Is monitored on an ongaing basis. The municipality is compelied
in terms of its constitutional mandate to provide all its residents with basic minimum services without recourse to an
assessment of creditworthiness. Subsequently, the municipality has no control over the approval of new customers who
acquire properties in the designated municipal area and consequently incur debt for rates, water and sanitation services
rendered to them.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries in the geographical area of the
rmunicipality. Periodic credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where appropriate,
credit guarantee is increased accordingly.

Consuimer receivables comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on the financial condition of these debtors, Consumer debtors are presented net of a
provision for impalrment,

In the case of receivables whose accounts become in arrears, it is endeavoured to collect such accounts by “levying of penalty
charges”, “demand for payment”, “restriction of services” and, as a last resort, “handed over for coliection”, whichever
procedure is applicable in terms of council's credit control and debt collection policy.

The municipality limits this risk exposure in the following ways, in addition to its normal credit control and debt
management procedures:
*  The application of section 118(3) of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA), which permits the municipality to rafuse
connection of services whilst any amount remains outstanding from a pravious debtor on the same property;
*  Anew owner is advised, prior to the issue of a rates clearance certificate, that any debt remaining from the previous
owner will be transferred to the new owner, if the previous owner does not setlle the outstanding amount;
*  The consclidation of rates and service accounts, enabling the disconnecting services for the non-payment of any of
the individual debts, in terms of section 102 of the MSA,
*  The requirement of a deposit for new service connections, serving as guarantee;
*  Encouraging residents to install water management devices that control water flow 1o households, and/or prepaid
meters,

There were no rnaterial changes in the exposure to credit risk and its objectives, poiicies and processes for managing and
measuring the risk during the year under review. The municipality's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying value of each financial asset in the statement of financial position, without taking into account the value of any
collateral obtained. The municipality has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
consumers, and is not concentrated in any particular sector or geographical area,

The municipality establishes an allowance for impaimment that represents its estimate of anticipated losses in respect of trade
and other racsivables,
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47. Financlal instruments (continued)

Payment of accounts of consumer debtors, who are unable to pay, are renegotiated as an ongoing customer relationship in
response to an adverse change in the circurnstances of the customer,

Long-term receivables and other debtors are individually evaluated annually at statement of financial position date for
impairment or discounting. A report on the various categories of debtors is drafted to substantiate such evaluation and
subsequent impairment/discounting, where applicable.

The municipality does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties

having similar characteristics. The municipality defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related
entities.

The table below shows the balance of the 5 major counterparties at the balance sheet date. Management is of the opinion that,
although these parties are the 5 counterparties with highest outstanding balances, no significant credit risk exposura exists,
based on the payment history of the parties,

Counterparty and Location 2014 2013

Ukusa River Estate Devslopment 656 512 656 512
G. Crookes Hospital 582 323 582 323
Ithala Developments Finance Corporation 563 852 563 852
San Lameer Estate Management 408 633 498 633
SA Botlink (Pty) Ltd 436 951 436 951

Except as detailed in the following table, the carmying amount of financial assets recorded in the annual financial statements,
which is net of impairment losses, represents the municipality's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the
value of any collateral obtained:

Fixed deposit investments 100 100
Long-term receivables 39 446 121716
Consumer debtors 224 041 094 192 964 409
Other debtors 15856227 12219724
Bank, cash and cash equivalents 160 671 371 717682 397
Maximum credit and interest risk exposure 400 608 238 277 058 346

The major concentrations of credit risk that arise from the municipality's recsivables in relation to customer classification are as
follows:

Consumer debtors:

Household 75.00 % 70.30 %
Industrial/commercial 17.00 % 15.98 %
National and Provincial Government 5% 384 %
Other classes - % 3.93%
Other debtors:

Other not classified 3.00 % 5.95 %
Total credit risk 100 % 100 %
Bank and cash balances

ABSA Bank Ltd 160666470 70999413
First National Bank of SA Ltd 16 358 16 358
Cash equivalents 4901 4 910
Total bank and cash balances 160 687 729 71020681
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48. Multl-employer retirement benefit information

The municipality makes provision for post-retirement benefits to eligible councillors and employees, who belong to different
pension schemes.

Councillors have the option to belong to the Pension Fund for Municipal Councillors.

All full-time employees belong to the KwaZulu-Natal Joint Municipal Pension Fund, which are made up of the Retirement,
Superannuation and Provident Funds.

These funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act and include both defined benefit and defined contribution
schemes,

The only obligation of the municipality with respect to the retirement benefit plans is to make the specified contributions, Where
councillors/employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the municipality are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions,

The total expense recognised in the statement of financial performance of R?77? (2013; R24 633 195) represents contributions
payable lo these plans by the municipality at rates specified in the rules of the plans, These contributions have been expensed.

Defined benefit schemes
Retirement fund

The scheme is subject to a tri-annual actuarial valuation. The last stalutory actuarial valuation was performed as at 31 March
2012 by Arthur Els & Associates.

The statutory actuarial valuation performed as at 31 March 2012 revealed that the fund had a shortfall of R251,5 (31 March
2011: shortfall of R382,3) million, with a funding level of 82,0%(31 March 2011: 84,1%). The contribution rate, including the
surcharges below, paid by the members {8,65%) and municipalities {34,22%) was expected to eradicate the shorifall in the
fund by 31 March 2015. However, the basic contribution payable is 4,72% less than the raquired contribution rate.

The actuarial shortfall is taken into account by determining surcharges, to be met by increased contributions. These surcharges
amount to 17% of pensionable emoluments, of which 1,65% is payable by members and 15,35% is payable by the local
authority.

This surcharge is payable until 31 March 2015. It is necessary that the basic employer contribution be increased by 4,72% to
18,37% and the surcharge be increased to 15,85% (Total employer contribution of 34,22%) and extended by a further 3 years
to 31 March 2018. This position will be menitored on an annual basis. Subsequently, notice has been sarved that the surcharge
will be increased to 15,85% with effect from 1 July 2012 for an indefinite period of time. The fund has effectivsly besn closed to
new members, and it is therefore assumed for the valuation, that no new members will join the fund. However, at present,
members of the three Natal Joint Funds are permitted 1o transfer between the funds and this flow of members may affect the
rate of contribution required to be paid to the Fund. It is intended that the Fund merge with the Superannuation Fund in the
near future.

Superannuation fund

The scheme is subject to a tri-annual actuarial valuation. The last interim actuarial valuation was performed as at 31 March
2012 by Arthur Els & Associates.

The interim actuarial valuation performed as at 31 March 2012 revealed that the fund had a shortfall of R270,0 (31 March 2011:
R548,5) million, with a funding level of 96,0% (31 March 2011: 90,9%). The contribution rate paid by the members (9,25%) and
municipalities (18,00%) is 3,63% (31 March 2011: 3,63%) less than the required contribution rate for future service and will be
reviewed at the next interim valuation. The deficit in respect of active members is being met by a surcharge of 9,5% of
pensionable salaries to meet the shortfall within the 8 year period provided for in the scheme. It was expected that the deficit
will be fully funded by 2020,

This surcharge is payable until 31 March 2020. It is necessary that the basic employer contribution be increased by 3,63% to
21,63% and the surcharge be increased to 9,5% and extended by a further 8 years to 31 March 2020, This position will be
monitored on an annual basis. Subsequently, notice has been served that the surcharge will be increased to 31,13% with effect
from 1 July 2012 for an indefinite period of time.
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48. Multi-employer retirement benefit information {(continued)

Itis intended that the fund merge with the retirement fund in the near future.

Defined contribution schemes

Municipal councillors pension fund

The scheme is subject to an annual actuarial valuation, The last statutory valuation was performed as at 31 March 2012,

The statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2011 revealed that the markst value of the fund was R1 446,8 (30 June 2010:
R1 446,8) million. The contribution rate paid by the members (13,75%) and Council (15,00%) is sufficient to fund the benefits
accruing from the fund in the future.

As reported by the actuaries, the fund was in a sound financial condition as at 30 June 2014,

Provident fund

The scheme is subject to a tri-annual actuarial valuation. The last statutory actuarial valuation was perforred as at 31 March
2012 by Arthur Els & Associates.

The statutory actuarial valuation performed as at 31 March 2012 revealed that the market value of the fund was R1 253,4 (31
March 2011: R1 056,2) milllon. The contribution rate payable {either 5,00%, 7,00% or 9,25% by the member and 1,85 times the
members contributions by the employer), Is sufficient to cover the cost of benefits and expenses and the fund was certified to
be in sound financial condition as at 31 March 2012,

Related party transactions

During the year the municipality rendered services to the following related parties that are related to the municipality as
indicated:
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48. Multl-employer retirement benefit information (continued)
For the year anded 30 June 2014 Sewerage Water Sundry Outstanding
charges charges charges balances
R R R
Councillors 49 489 104 375 - 20 549
Municipal Manager and Section 57 Personnel 7041 22725 - 1602
56 530 127 100 - 31151
For the year ended 30 June 2013 Sewerage Water Sundry Outstanding
charges charges charges balances
R R R R
Coungcillors 41 119 78 459 - 13033
Municipal Manager and Section 57 Personne! 4919 17 387 - 11186
46 038 95 846 - 14 149

The services rendered to related parties are charged at approved tariffs that were advertised to the Public. No
bad debts were written off or recognised in respect of amounts owed by related parties,

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. Consumer deposits wera received from councillors, the
Municipal Manager and Section 57 Personnel. No expense has been recognised in the period for bad or doubtful debts in

respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

Loans granted to related parties

In terms of the MFMA, the municipaiity may not grant loans to its Councillors, Management, Staff and Public with effect from 1

July 2004.

Compensation of related parties

Compensation of Key Management Personnel and Councillors is set out in Notes 28 and 29 respectively, to the Annual

Financial Statements.

Purchases from related parties

The municipality procured goods and/or services from the following companies, which are considered to be related parties:

30 June 2014 Related Municipal  Purchases
Company Name Person Capacity for the
Year
Paul Preston Attorneys P Preston  Audit -
Committee
Shelly Travel CC CV Elliott Audit 447 666
Committee
Dan’s Cleaning Services T Malishe Employee -
RNF Contractors M Goberdaan Employee -
Vovolethu Function and Catering Z Mbhele Employee 18 240
Victorson Building CC TB Mhionge Employee -
Ncokwane Trading Enterprise PP Chili Employee -
Nothevuyo Trading and Projects ZL Cele Employee -
Ntlangano Projects MC Employee € 007 656
Makiwane
Skhunyana training Consultants NP Gumbi 1109 791
Budding Trade 1180 CC Z Mkhwanazi 2500
Thutong Training & Development ZI Ntlangula 15 000
Isifiso Sika Ndlovu Contracting and Trading CC NP Msani 848 107
8 448 960
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48. Multi-employer retirement benefit information (continued)
30 June 2013 Related Municipal Purchases Purchases
Company Name Person Capacity for the for the
Year Year
MB Electrical & Lighting ClrMoosa Councillor - 22054
Bux
Paui Preston Attorneys P Preston  Audit - 57 663
Committee
Shelly Travel CC CVEliott  Audit 610 294 -
Committee
Dan's Cleaning Services TMalishe Employee - 20760
RNF Contractors M Goberdaan Employee - 273185
Vovolethu Function and Catering Z Mbhele Employee - 21 888
Victorson Building CC TB Mhionge Employee 86 528 8s 528
Ncokwane Trading Enterprise PP Chili Employee - 2 600
Nothevuyo Trading and Projects ZL Cele Employee 299 244 -
Ntlangano Projects MC Employee 27 823866 18 192 553
Makiwane
28819932 18677 231

The transactions wers concluded in full compliance with the municipality's Supply Chain Management Policy and the

transactions are considered to be at arm's length
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49. Contingent liabilities

Guarantees:

3062 000

2 862 000

i) Hibiscus Coast Municipality: The Municipality issued a bank guarantee in favour of
Hibiscus Coast Municipality in lieu of a deposit on the electricity accounts of the
Municipality.

{ii} Eskom: The Municipality issued a bank guarantee in favour of Eskom to cover
deposits on the electricity accounts of the Municipality.

{iii)South African Post office:The municipality issued a bank guarantee in favour of
South African Post office.

Powers and functions:

10000

2852000
200 000

12 947 266

10000

2 852 000

12 947 266

{i) Environmental Health: It has come to the attention of management that a local
municipality has indicated its intention of raising a claim against the district to recover
expenses incurred in respect of the Environmental Health Powers and Functions.
Negotiations have been entered into in this regard between the municipalities.
Currently management is of the opinion that there are no legal grounds to entertain a
possible claim.

iiy Water and Sanitation: With the takeover of Water and Sanitation Schemes from the
local municipalities in 2004, cerlain assels were funded through internal funding which
these local municipalities are claiming from the district. Currently management is of the
opinion that there are no legal grounds to entertain the possible claims.

Court proceedings:

5075295

787197

81384129

5075 295

7871971

2178 012

(i) Dispute on Expenditure Claimed: Council is involved in a dispute with Sublime
Marketing (the applicant), where the applicant is claiming an amount of R227 142, with
interest estimated at R192 432, in respect of functions performed on behalf of
Ezinqoleni Municipality/ Horseshoe Farm. The municipality is currently defending the
estimated claim and is awailing the enrolment of the matter for trial. The outcome of
the legal processes is unknown at this stage. The Municipality denies any agreement
with Sublime, and therefore will not be seitling on this matter, We await court action
from Sublime.

{ii) Alleged Fraud: Council has been involved in a court case with ABCON/PILCON
Projects into alleged fraud and/or fronting in terms of its supply chain management
Palicy. Although judgement has been passed, an appeal has been lodged and is still
pending in the High Court. The outcome is not known at this stage.

{iii) Cession Agreement: JZZ Engineering is claiming from the municipality as per a
prescribed claim against a cession agreement entered into. The possible liability
amounts to R153 900, plus costs, The outcome of the matter is still unknown, The
Municipality has drafted and entered its plea in the matter.

{iv) Alleged Breach of Contract: The municipality Is been involved in a court case with
Thumbprint events Management, where it is alleged that the municipality has
unilaterally repudiated a contract. Applicant is claiming unpaid invoices and damages
in terms of what would have been due to them had the contract not been repudiated by
the municipality. The municipality is defending this action and awaits a court date. The
claim is valued at RB75 258 plus 30% of envisaged gate takings for two events and
25% of sale of floor space for two events.

418 574

153 900

875248

100 00

419 574

153 900

875248
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49. Contingent llabilitles (continued)

v) Alleged Damages caused to Farmland: The municipality has been issued with a
court order instructing it to immediately cease the nuisance caused on Mr Meuller's
property at Lot 2007 Uvongo through the discharge of final sewer effluent into a
tributary of the Uvongo River on his land, thereby causing a ravine on his land and
rendering it unfarmable to him. He is further claiming for damages caused through
non-usability of his land, damages for loss of profit as a result of the damage caused to
his property and the subdivision and transfer of the damaged land to the Municipality.
The Municipality is currently negotiating with him with respect to his potential claims.

{vi) Labour Disputs: The Municipality dismissed an employee, N Moodley, who took the
matter to arbitration and was successful. The Municipality has referred the matter to
the Labour Court, and awaits a set down date.

{vii) Cession Agreement. Premier Attraction is claiming from the Municipality for
allsgedly not honouring a cession agreement in their favour. The outcome of the
matter is still unknown.

{viii} Dispute on Expenditure Paid to Member of Joint Venture: The Municipality is
involved in a matter with Gigaba Properties where applicant is claiming that the
Municipality wrongly paid one member of a joint venture which had been awarded a
contract by the Municipality. The Municipality is defending the matter and awaits a trial
date. The claim against the Municipality is in an amount of R6 659 282 plus 15,5%
interest on R16 573 819 from February 2009 until payment and 15,5% interest on R3
424 024 from October 2008 until payment.

ix) Dispute on Expenditure Claimed: The Municipality is expeactant of litigation from
Shosholoza JV whete they claim for non-payment of invoices in respect of work done
on Sports Complex.

{ix} Dispute on Expenditure Claimed: The Municipality is involved in litigation with
Mabinza Welding, who is claiming for nonpayment by Municipality, A counter claim
was made for non-performance.

{x) Dispute on Damages Claimed: The Municipality is involved in litigation with JD
Group emanating from a motor vehicie accident between a municipal vehicle and a
JDG vehicle.

{xi) Dispute on Expenditure Claimed: Municipality is expectant of litigation from
L'Aftique Liquide where they claim an amount of R3, S million pursuant to alleged work
conducted as a rasult of being awarded preferred bidder status on a project for
Alternate bulk water supply.

{xily Dispute on Excessive Salary Increases: Municipality is expsctant of litigation from
Natal Joint Municipal Pension/Provident Fund where they claim an amount of R1 442
982.62 as a result of alleged excessive salaries paid to Employees.

{xii) Dispute on non-award of awarded tender: The Municipality is currently in fitigation
with Isidingo pursuant to non-award of a tender award, Matter was in High Court on 2
August 2013, Await order confirming award to be made to Isidingo and non opposition
by awarded contractor, subject to payment of legal fees incurred. Amount of legal fees
is not yet available,

122 6§82

€659 282

53 443

1 000 000

122 682

6659 282

£ 584 968

1030 375

3500000

1442983
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49, Contingent llabilities (continued)

Current objectlons against Scm process

Ugu-07-1201-2012: Value of R1 305 000.00 4461 847 1 305 000
Ugu-07-1242-2013: Value of R1 489 542.00 61325743 1489 542
Ugu-07-1255-2013: Value R5 208 907.38 34 420 883 5208 807

100 208 473 8 003 449

Contingencies arising from pending litigatlon on wage curve agreement

On 21 April 2010 SALGA signed the "Categorisation and job evaluation wage curves collective agreement” (wage curve
agreement) with IMATU and SAMWU on behalf of municipalities. The agreement established the wage curves and wage scales
{o be used by municipalities in determining the wages of municipal employees, based on an evaluation of employees’ jobs per
the TASK job evaluation system.

Subsequent to the signing of the agreement, the unions declared a dispute with the agreement, The dispute was referred to the
Labour Court and the court delivered a ruling on 22 June 2012 that employees receive a salary increase backdated with effect
from 1 July 2010 instead of 1 July 2011, SALGA, on behalf of municipalities, applied for leave to appeal this ruling and was

granted the right to appeal against the judgement on 29 August 2012. To date this Labour Court of Appeal case has not been
finalised,

The municipality has not implemented the TASK job evaluation system nor the wage curve agreement as yet. The costs
involved towards the implementation of the TASK job evaluation system and the wage curve agreement and the settlement of
this matter are unknown at this stage.

As a resuit of the uncertainties arising from the dispute declared by the unions and the pending litigation ragarding the wage
curve agreemant, the municipality may have an additional payable for employee wages, depending on the cutcome of the
pending litigation. It is not practicable to reliably estimate the amount of this payable prior to the outcome of the pending
litigation,

50. Contingent Assets

i) Legal claim against Inggondo and Nzwakele Construction for alleged fraud and 4714 038 .
undue enrichment from contracts awarded by the municipality.

§1. Events after the reporting date

No events having financial implications requiring disclosure occurred subsequent to 30 June 2014,
52, .CDmparatIve figures

The comparative figures were restated as a result of the effect of Prior Period Errors (Note 37).

§3, Revenue

Service charges 314783607 274 524 180
Rental of facilities and equipment 2193 961 1683135
Interest received (trading) 32566582 20305215
Other income - (rollup) 6378 760 11 856 263
Government grants & subsidies 664 584 167 590984 3388

1020 507 077 899 363 181
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53. Revanue (continued)

The amount Included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services

are as follows:

Service charges 314 783 607 274 524 180

Rental of facilities and equipment 2193 961 1693135

Interest received {(trading) 32568582 20305215

Other income - {rollup) 6378760 11856263
365922910 308 378793

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions Is as

follows:

Taxation revenue

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 664 584 167 590 984 288

54. Property rates
55. Tax refunded
§6, Remuneration of Councillors

Remuneration of Councillors are from capital surpluses.
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§7. Other cash item 1
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